

#### UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555-0001

May 9, 1997

MEMORANDUM TO: L.B. Marsh, Chief Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

FROM: K. Steven West, Chief Fire Protection Engineering Section WWW Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

SUBJECT: TRIP REPORT - TRIP TO UNDERWRITERS LABORATORIES, INCORPORATED TO OBSERVE THREE HOUR FIRE TEST OF ONE AND THREE HOUR VERSAWRAP RACEWAY FIRE BARRIER SYSTEMS (TAC M82809)

During April 10 and 11, 1997, I visited to Underwriters Laboratories, Incorporated (UL), Northbrook, Illinois, to observe a full-scale fire endurance test of 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems. Attachment 1 is a list of individuals that observed or participated in the test. I interacted mostly with the individuals marked with asterisks.

Transco Products, Incorporated (Transco) is developing Versawrap as a stand-alone fire barrier or as an upgrade for such existing raceway fire barriers as Thermo-Lag 330-1. In general, Versawrap barriers are installed (from the item to be protected outward) as individual layers of foil, water filled mylar tubes, fiber blankets, foil, and intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth. The numbers and arrangements of the individual barrier components are dependent on the type of item to be protected (e.g., raceway, cable, support, etc.) and the desired fire rating. (Attachment 1 to a memorandum of April 15, 1997, from K.S. West to L.B. Marsh describes the components of a typical Versawrap barrier and their general arrangements.) Entergy Operations, Incorporated, is considering installing 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barriers at Arkansas Nuclear One, Unit 1, and Northern States Power is considering installing a 1-hour Versawrap barrier at Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station.

Attachment 2 is Transco Test Procedure TR-228, "Three Hour Fire Test of One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems for Conduits and Cable Trays," Revision 2, February 7, 1997. The test was a single 3 hour fire exposure followed by a solid-stream hose stream test that was intended to demonstrate the ability of both 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems (in the same test) to meet the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1 (GL 86-10, S 1).

CONTACT: K.S. West, NRR 301-415-1220



9705130324 970509 PDR ADOCK 05003282 F PDR

# NRC FILE CENTER COPY

50-282 406

#### L. Marsh

The test specimen had been constructed and installed on the test furnace before I arrived at UL. Therefore, I did not observe fire barrier installation or thermocouple placement. The overall test specimen consisted of a steel and concrete deck from which 18 individual 1- and 3-hour test articles were suspended into UL's large floor furnace. According to Kevin Hawks, Transco, (1) Transco personnel installed the Versawrap fire barriers on the test articles in accordance with Transco instructions and procedures, (2) the test articles were instrumented in accordance with GL 86-10, S 1 (3) Transco quality control witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (4) UL quality control also independently witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (5) UL will prepare the fire test report. The test articles and the conditions which they were intended to bound are described in Attachment 2. I made pen and ink changes to Attachment 2 to reflect changes that Transco had made to the test articles after it issued the test procedure. Attachment 3 shows the test article layout, construction details, and thermocouple locations. The test articles, which did not contain cable fill, were instrumented with 438 thermocouples.

On the basis of my observations, it appeared that UL exposed the test specimen in accordance with the ASTM E-119 standard time-temperature curve for 3 hours. UL programmed its data acquisition computers to electronically record the test article thermocouple temperatures every two minutes. UL also printed the thermocouple temperatures about every five minutes. UL will use the electronically recorded temperature data to judge the fire endurance performance of the individual test articles. The printed temperatures were provided for contemporaneous information during the test. About midway through the fire exposure. Transco noticed some apparently anomalous thermocouple readings. For example, closel; -spaced thermocouples were reporting vastly different temperatures. Upon examination, Transco found that the insulation had melted off of some thermocouple wires that were running on top of and in direct contact with the steel test deck. Apparently, at these points the thermocouples were measuring the temperature of the test deck rather than the temperatures of the test articles. After UL and Transco placed insulating blankets between the affected thermocouple wires and the steel test deck, the printed temperatures returned (dropped) to what appeared to be a more normal range. Transco indicated that UL would assess the impact of this event on the overall test results in its fire test report.

Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 61 minutes, it appeared that test articles A, B, C, D, L, O, and R met the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 1-hour fire rating while test articles E and Q did not. Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 2 hours and 55 minutes (the temperatures at 3 hours were not printed), it also appeared that test articles F, G, H, and I may meet the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 3-hour fire rating, but test articles J, K, M, N, and P will not.

Following the 3 hour fire exposure. UL subjected the test specimen to a solid hose stream test for 2-1/2 minutes. With the exception of test article P, most of the outer layers of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth, foil, and fiber blankets were knocked off of the bottom and side surfaces of the test article fire barriers by the force of the hose stream. The barrier on test article P remained intact and may not have been hit by the hose stream. In addition.

#### L. Marsh

with the exception of test article B, a 30-inch wide steel cable tray with a 1-hour Versawrap fire barrier, it appeared that at least the innermost layer of foil (the foil attached directly to the raceway) remained intact during the hose stream test. For test article B, the foil on the bottom surface of the tray was breached, apparently by the force of the solid hose stream. GL 86-10, S 1, states, in part, that the fire endurance qualification test for fire barrier materials are successful if "[t]he cable tray, raceway, or component fire barrier system remained intact during the fire exposure and water hose stream test without developing any openings through which the cable tray, raceway, or component (e.g., cables) is visible.

On April 11, 1997, I observed Transco disassemble the fire barriers that remained on test articles H and P after the fire and hose stream tests. For both of these proposed 3-hour fire barrier designs, the inner layers of foil, water filled mylar tubes, and fiber blankets remained largely intact. Many of these mylar tubes appeared to contain their original inventory of water and those that had leaked contained some water. In addition, the ordinary adhesive-backed strapping tape that was used to attach the tubes to the raceways was largely free of fire damage.

One interesting part of the test was a test of a 12-inch by 12-inch by 8-inch thick silicone foam penetration seal that was penetrated by a <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>-inch diameter steel conduit (test article N). In addition to the normal fire resistant damming board, the seal assembly included an outer layer of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth (on the fire side). According to Mr. Hawks, Transco considered this a "throw away" or research and development scoping test and did not instrument the seal assembly with thermocouples to obtain unexposed side temperatures. After the 3-hour fire exposure and hose stream test, Transco disassembled the penetrations seal. The seal assembly was intact. About 2 to 3 inches of the silicone foam material was consumed during the fire exposure. A full 5 to 6 inches of unreacted silicone foam material remained.

UL will base its determinations on the thermal performance of the test articles on its observations during the fire endurance and hose stream tests, analyses of the electronically recorded thermocouple data, and consideration of both the maximum single point temperatures and the average unexposed side temperatures. Presumably, UL will also consider the effects of the problems with the thermocouples that were experienced during the test. Attachment 4 is UL's record of test observations.

Docket Nos.: 50-313, 50-282, and 50-306

Attachments: As stated

## DISTRIBUTION (w/atts):

Central File PUBLIC Plant File Docket File (3) GHolahan SWest MSalley GKalman SPLB Reading File BWetzel

Document Name: G:\SECTIONC\WEST\VWRAPTST.DOC

SC:SPLB:NRR SWest 041 /97

OFFICIAL RECORD COPY

#### ATTACHMENT 1

List of Observers and Participants Fire Endurance Test of Versawrap Fire Barrier Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., Northbrook, Illinois April 10, 1997

K. Steven West Robert Goss\* Kevin Hawks\* Greg Jaroz\* Sandra Bradford\* John Kmetz Jeff Deminski Gary Sharisky Ed Johanson\* Chris Johnson Michael Allen Boomgarden Bill Joy Mark Pastor Herb Muller Mark izydorek Sam Oolie Ron Rispoli\* Woody Walker\* Tom Lillehei Dan Langel

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Transco Proc'ucts, Inc. Transco Products, Inc. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. No Fire Technologies Entergy Operations, Inc. Entergy Operations, Inc. Northern States Power wargent and Lundy

.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 1 of 13

# Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228

<u>for</u> <u>Three Hour Fire Test of</u> <u>One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems</u> <u>for Conduits and Cable Trays</u>

## (TRANSCO PRODUCTS INC. PROJECT #AR-256)

Rev.:	Description:	By:	Date:	Ck:	Date:	App.:	Date:
0	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	02/C~ '97	K.Hawks	02/07/97	R. Goss	02/07/97
1	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	I. Jarosz	03/01/97	K.Hawks	03/01/97	B.C. Mach- chhar	03/01/97
2	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	03/16/97	Kughtenh	03/17/97	(Part	3/17/9,

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 2 of 13

## TABLE OF CONTENTS:

Title Page: Page	1
Table of Contents:	2
Section 1.0, Synopsis:	8
Section 2.0. Test Furnace: Page	8
Section 3.0, Items to be Protected: Page	9
Section 4.0, Fire Barrier Material Installation: Page	9
Section 5.0, Thermocouples: Pages 9 - 1	1
Section 6.0, Fire Test: Page 1	1
Section 7.0, Hose Stream Test: Pages 11 - 12	2
Section 8.0, Test Report: Pages 12 - 12	3

#### Attachments:

Drawings:	Attachment "A"	Pages	13 of 13
USNRC Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1:	Attachment "B"	Pages	18 of 18

Transco Products Inc Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 3 of 13

#### SECTION 1.0 SYNOPSIS:

Transco Fire Test #TR-228 will be a single fire test conducted in accordance with the performance requirements of NRC GL 86-10, Supplement 1 and the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve. The purpose of this test is to demonstrate the ability of both one and three hour *VERSAWRAP* raceway fire barrier systems (in the same test) to protect a variety of raceway conditions that are representative of those commonly found in nuclear power plants. Even though some of the barrier systems to be tested are only intended for one hour applications, they will be subjected to the full three hour fire test. In these cases, the one hour barrier specimens will be considered to be successful thermally if they meet the raceway temperature pass/fail criteria of GL 86-10 for the first hour of the fire test. After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, both one and three hour specimens will be subjected to a hose stream test in accordance with Section 7.0 of this procedure. Testing will be performed at Underwriters Laboratories (Northbrook, Illinois).

The overall test specimen will consist of a metal and concrete deck from which a number of simulated conduit and cable tray raceways will be suspended. The sizes and shapes of these raceways are intended to represent conditions that bound equivalent or less severe raceway configurations in the field. These bounding conditions to be qualified by this test are described below. The metal/concrete deck with its individual raceway specimens will be placed on top of a large floor furnace where the raceways will be subjected to the three hour fire endurance test. Immediately after the conclusion of the fire test, the deck and raceway specimens are lifted as a single unit from the furnace and will then be exposed to the hose stream test.

The raceway items to be tested and conditions they are intended to bound are as follows:

#### ITEM: DESCRIPTION:

- "A" <u>2" x 2" Aluminum Solid-Back Cable Tray/Tube Track</u> This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition) as well as bundled steel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum raceways. Because this is a one hour wrap, it is only required to meet the thermal pass/fail requirements of GL 86-10 Supplement 1 for one hour whereas the hose stream test for this specimen will be performed immediately after the three hour fire test. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical raceway sections, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper cable and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading.
- "B" <u>30" x 4" Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray</u> This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on 30" x 4" (and all smaller sizes) of both aluminum and/or steel cable trays (aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "A" above) as well as bundled conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 4 of 13

"Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a single #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum raceways up to this size for hose stream test qualifications of *VERSAWRAP*. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap.

- "C" <u>34</u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <u>34</u>" diameter rigid steel conduit and vill utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "D" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> T<sup>+</sup> item is intended to demonstrate one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway specimen will fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "E" <u>¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit Near Concrete Barrier</u> This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) located approximately ¾" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard ¾" diameter rigid steel conduit that will use condulets at each end of the specimen on the exposed side of the deck. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit. (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit the impact of the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

three

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 5 of 13

"F" <u>Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hangers and ¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound enchour VERSAWRAP systems installed on ¾" diameter conduit (as the most severe thermal mass) connected to a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped with VERSAWRAP as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

"G" <u>2" x 2" Aluminum Solid-Back Cable Tray</u> "ube Track -This item is intended to bound three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition) as well as bundled sateel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum trays. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. This item will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for small raceways.

"H" <u> $30" \times 4"$  Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray</u> - This item is intended to bound three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on 30" x 4" and all smaller sizes of both aluminum and steel cable tray (*aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "G" above*) and bundled steel or aluminum conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum trays up to this size for hose stream test qualifications. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for both large tray and/or box wraps.

"I" <u>34" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest size of conduit in the field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 3/4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel conduit and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 6 of 13

- "J" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> -This item is intended to demonstrate three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for large and small conduit wraps.
- "K" <u>VERSAWRAP</u> systems installed on the smallest size of conduit (the most severe thermal mass) found in the field that is located approximately <u>4</u>" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <u>4</u>" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize condulets at each end of the specimen. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit - the impact of the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered as a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a single <u>#8</u> AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

#### one

54T 35

- Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hangers and ¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on a ¾" diameter rigid steel conduit as the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) connected to a hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "M" <u>1-½</u>" <u>Diameter</u> Steel Conduit and T61 "Thermo-Lag" Raceway Covered with Modified VERSAWRAP - This item is intended to bound "modified" one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 1-½" (and larger) diameter conduits in the field. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 1-½" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. The one hour Thermo-Lag material will be installed with "dry joints" (no trowel-grade Thermo-Lag will be used). A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on these raceway types. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed

"0,"

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 7 of 13

aluminum hanger

according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

"N" <u>12" x 12" x 16 Gauge Steel Box Attached to a ½" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* conduit systems that interface with a one hour "Darmatt KM1" raceway barrier system installed on the box. The conduit will pass through a penetration seal to show wrap terminations as such. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1.

"O" <u>Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a ½" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simulated junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.

"P" <u>Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a ¾" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound thr æ hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simulated junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.

"Q" <u>3C-500MCM Aluminum umored Cable</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on a 3C-500MCM aluminum armored cable as supplied by Northern States Power for their Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station. The 10' (minimum) span of cable will be temporarily supported by a rope about mid-span. During the test, the rope will burne melt and will allow the wrapped cable to be unsupported for the remainder of the fire test. The intent here is to show that the wrap will still be effective even if the cable suddenly becomes unsupported between hanger points (maximum distance as tested herein) in the field. (In the field, the cable is located in an aluminum tray suspended on steel hangers. The utility wishes to evaluate the possibility of wrapping only the cable instead of the entire tray. It is felt that if the aluminum tray is not wrapped, it will melt or be consumed during a fire thus leaving the cable unsupported except at points where the tray was suspended on steel hangers.)

3" × 3" angle - structural steel.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 8 of 13

#### SECTION 2.0 TEST FURNACE:

The furnace to be used is Underwriters Laboratories' standard large floor furnace. The furnace shall be operated in accordance with the requirements of ASTM E-119 for the three hour fire test

#### SECTION 3.0 ITEMS TO BE PROTECTED:

The following is a description of the items to musculas raceway elements for the fire test:

(See Section 1.0, Synopsis for a general description of these items. Note: all steel trays and boxes will be manufactured from 16 gauge steel while all conduit will be standard, rigid conduit. All "free-cable air drops" will consist of single pieces of st\*anded 8 AWG bare copper wire according to GL 86-10, Supplement 1 requirements. All hangers will be fabricated from standard "Unistrut" type material [hangers may be welded to the raceways for the test in lieu of using clips, straps, etc].)

An accurate description of specimen fabrication shall be included in the final test report (as verified by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control). Hardware substitutions are permitted provided substitute material (etc.) does not increase the heat mass of the specimen and are documented by Transco QC and UL.

#### SECTION 4.0 FIRE BARRIER MATERIAL INSTALLATION:

The VERSAWRAP and Transco Products Inc. TCO-001 materials shall be installed by Transco Products Inc. personnel in accordance with the manufacturer's instruction and/or procedures. If written instructions are not available at the time of installation, then Transco Products Inc. QC personnel shall document/verify step-by-step methods used for installation. Test installation records will be included as an appendix to the final test report.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 9 of 13

Materials used for this test shall be purchased, received, and installed in accordance with latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Program and applicable procedures. All fire barrier envelope installation will be witnessed by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control personnel. Material components (except for tie wire and ceramic blanket) will be identified with the responsible QC's initials as each layer is installed.

<u>Note</u>: This test will be performed as a "Safety Related" quality program in accordance with the latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Manual (10CFR, Part 21 applies) with the exception that all materials will be provided as "Q-Class" with Certificates of Conformances.

#### SECTION 5.0 THERMOCOUPLES:

#### A.) Fire Barrier Envelope:

The fire barrier envelope is considered all areas of the specimen on the exposed side of the test slab. For these areas, thermocouples shall be mounted to the specimen to gather temperature data for the duration of the fire test. At a minimum, temperatures shall be documented at nominal two minute intervals for the duration of the test. Thermocouple placement for the fire barrier envelope (quantity and locations) shall be as specified in NRC GL 86-10 and Supplement 1 as follows:

".... Cable Trays - The temperature rise on the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a cable tray shall be measured by placing the thermocouples every 152 mm (6 - inches) on the exterior surface of each tray side rails between the cable tray side rail and the fire barrier material.

Internal raceway temperatures shall be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare copper conductor routed on the top of the cable tray rungs along the entire length and down the longitudinal center of the cable tray run with thermocouples installed every 152 mm (6- inches) along the length of the copper conductor. Thermocouples shall be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations...."(1)

"....Conduits - The temperature rise of the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a conduit should be measured by placing thermocouples every 152 mm [6 inches] on the exterior conduit surface between the conduit and the unexposed surface of the fire barrier material. These thermocouples should be attached to the exterior condult surface opposite of the test deck and closest to the furnace fire source. The internal raceway temperatures should be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare copper

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 10 of 13

conductor routed through the entire length of the conduit system with thermocouples installed every 152 mm [6 inches] along the length of the copper conductor. Thermocouples should also be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations...."(1)

Free-Cable Air Drops: Thermocouples will be installed on the stranded 8 AWG wire used for demonstrating the "free-cable air drop" every 152 mm [6 inches] in accordance with the same requirements for monitoring internal conduit/cable tray temperatures.

(Note: In accordance with NRC GL 86-1C, Supplement 1 requirements, "for the thermocouples installed on conduits, calle tray side rails, and bare copper conductors,  $a \pm 13 \text{ mm} (\pm 1/2 \text{ inch})$  installation tolerance is acceptable". Hence, this tolerance shall be considered acceptable for use in this test. The tolerance is considered to be from the point of individual thermocouple placement and not compounded from one thermocouple to the next (i.e., all thermocouples can not be 6 1/2" from each other but rather must be  $\pm 1/2$ " from the measured 6" [minimum] mark on the item being monitored.)

Junction box thermocouples will be installed in accordance with the requirements of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1.

#### B.) Penetration Seal:

Thermocouple placement for the unexposed penetration seal surface (test item "N") will comply with the typical requirements of ASTM E814. As an optional method for protecting thermocouple tips, the thermojunctions of each thermocouple may be embedded into the seal surface or seal surface/penetrating member interface approximately  $\frac{1}{9}$  - $\frac{1}{4}$ " below the seal surface (because of the nature of the seal material, this placement can be performed at any time after the installation of the seal material). For this alternate method, insulation pads for covering the thermocouple tips will not be used.

All specimen temperatures shall be monitored using thermocouples (with special limits of error equal or less than 1.1°C). Thermojunctions of all specimen thermocouples shall be electrically welded. All thermocouple wire shall be supplied with certifications of purity, accuracy, and calibration.

Furnace atmosphere thermocouples shall be placed 12" below the furnace deck/slab as well as 12" away from representative elements of the test specimen ancordance with ASTM E-119-88 requirements (not less than nine [9] thermocouples will be used to monitor furnace atmosphere temperatures). Additional furnace atmosphere thermocouples be employed around the specimen as it protrudes into the furnace. These will be placed at the laboratories discretion to supplement data acquisition in areas where furnace atmosphere thermocouples can not be mounted to satisfy ASTM E-119 requirements because of the specimen's configuration, et cetera.

The installation and location of each ur iquely identified thermocouple (for both the specimen and furnace) shall

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 11 of 13

be mapped and verified (measured) by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control. Verification may be performed as hand written notes and shall become part of the permanent records of the test. Also, all thermocouple certifications shall also become a permanent record of the test.

<sup>1</sup> Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

#### SECTION 6.0 FIRE TEST:

The fire test shall be conducted in accordance with the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve (and temperature tolerance) for a minimum of three (3) hours. As a minimum, temperature data provided by both furnace and specimen thermocouples should be monitored and documented at nominal two (2) minute intervals. The laboratory shall verify and document visual specimen performance and occurrences (*i.e.*, smoke, et cetera) for the duration of the test.

It is intent of the test to demonstrate as many different raceway configurations as possible. As such, several raceway test specimens exhibit multiple features (*i.e.*, the 3 hour large tray demonstrates the tray wrap, a "free-air" cable and interface, a wrap-to-concrete interface, *etc.*). If one of these features fails thermally or during the hose stream test, it is the intent of the test to then exclude that feature from the configuration being qualified. In the case of the large tray for example, if the "free-air" cable or wrap-to-concrete interface fails for any reason, it is does not cause the tray to fail provided the rest of the tray specimen meets the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. Any failed portion of a specimen will then not be qualified by this test.

#### SECTION 7.0 HOSE STREAM TEST:

After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, the fire barrier envelope specimen (along with the surrounding penetration seal) shall be subjected to a minimum of one of the following hose stream tests (as identified in NRC GL 80-10, Supplement 1):

(a.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 3.8 cm (1-1)"-inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 30 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75 psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at a maximum of 1.5 meters (5 feet) from the test specimen. (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 minutes for both 1-hour and 3 -hour barriers); or<sup>2</sup>

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 12 of 13

- (b.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 6.4 cm (2 ½-inch) national standard playpipe with a 2.9 cm (1-1/8 -inch) orifice at a pressure of 207 kPa (30psi) at a distance of 6.1 meters (20 feet) from the specimen, (Duration of the hose stream application 1 minute for a 1-hour barrier and 2 ½ minutes for a 3-hour barrier), or"<sup>2</sup>
- (c.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through 3.8 cm (1 ½inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 15 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at a maximum of 3 meters (10 feet) from the test specimen. (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 minutes for both 1-hour and 3-hour barriers)."<sup>2</sup>

2: Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

The responsible QC shall verify and document the type of hose stream, distance, time et cetera employed in each hose stream test.

#### SECTION 8.0 TEST REPORT:

The laboratory performing the test shall provide a written report which accurately describes the following minimum elements of the test:

- 1.) Verification of specimen materials and dimensions used;
- Verification of fire barrier envelope materials, dimensions, and installation techniques (procedures) used;
- 3.) Verification of general furnace construction/dimensions and locations of burner, thermocouples, et cetera;
- Verification of specimen thermocouple locations (along with copies of thermocouple material certifications);
- Verification of standards used for conducting fire test along with record of both furnace atmosphere and specimen temperature data acquired during test;
- Record of furnace pressure during fire test;
- 7.) Record of visual occurrences/observations of fire and hose stream tests;

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 13 of 13

- Record of hose stream test(s);
- 9.) Photographic records of specimen before fire barrier envelope installation, after fire barrier installation, and post fire/hose stream tests;
- 10.) Post test observations including measurements of material loss/degradation, et cetera;
- 11.) Certification of the report by the agency performing test; and,
- 12.) QC records and notes from installation and test as an appendix to the report.
- 13.) Record of test items thermocouple temperature readings.

## ALL TEST RECORDS, NOTES, CERTIFICATIONS, REQUIRED BY THIS TEST WILL BE LEGIBLE AND SUITABLE FOR REPRODUCTION.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 1 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 2 of 13



PLAN VIEW

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 3 of 13



# ELEVATION OF A & G

'TEM A DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 4 of 13



# ITEM B DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 5 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 6 of 13



ELEVATION OF D & J ITEM D DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE STANDARD 4"Ø RIGID STEEL CONDUIT

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 7 of 13



ELEVATION OF E & K

A SUPERSUPPORT CONTRACTOR OF THE STATE OF THE STATE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 8 of 13



# ELEVATION OF F & L

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 9 of 13



ELEVATION OF M

A CODDOD KTION OF THE SOFTAL OF CARACTER

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 10 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 11 of 13



# 1 HOUR INSTAILATION

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 12 of 13



# ELEVATION OF P 3 HOUR INSTALLATION



ELEVATION OF Q

3C-500MCM ALUMINUM ARMORED CABLE FURNISHED BY NORTHERN STATES POWER TO BOUND PRAIRIE ISLAND SITE SPECIFIC INSTALLATION Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 13 of 13

NORTH



ARTICLE	TC NOS.	ARTICLE	TC NOS
А	194-234		324-349 & 426
8	128-160 & 411-413	К	112-127
C	39-67		377-384 & 427
Ð	350-376	M	68-85
81	96-111	N	407-410 & 417-420
F	1-8 & 428	0	299-323
G	235-273		274-298
н	161-193 & 414-416	in 1 10 i 7 i	429-438
	9-38	R	385-406

TEST ARTICLE LAYOUT & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS



SOUTH SIDE

WEST END

NORTH SIDE

TC NOS. 222-234 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO 222 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 194 AND 208 ON TUBE TRACK.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE A





TC NOS. 54-67 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 54 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 39.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE C

- EAST

# CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE D

TC NOS. 364-376 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350.










SOUTH SIDE

EAST END

NORTH SIDE

TC NOS. 261-273 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO. 261 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 235 AND 248 ON TUBE TRACK

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE G



CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE H



TC NOS. 25-38 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COFPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 25 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 9.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE I

- EAST





TC NOS. 338-349 & 426 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350. TC NO. 426 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 337.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS-ARTICLE J







EAST

TC NOS. 82-95 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 82 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 68.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE M



TC NOS. 417-420 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 417 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 407.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE N



TC NOS. 316-323 (6"OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 316 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 299 & 300. TC NOS. 321-323 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE O



CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 291 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 274 & 275. TC NOS. 296-298 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE P



4"x4"x1/4" VERTICAL STEEL ANGLE

WEST -----

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE R



NBK - FACSIMILE R	EQUEST	FORM
-------------------	--------	------

MUNUMINENI +

Underwriters Laboratories Inc. ®				AX NUMBERS   ME (516) 271-8259   RTP (919) 549-1842   SC (408) 296-3256   CAM (360) 817-6000   TW-FUS 01-886-2-717-2405   TW-ES 01-886-2-891-7644   HK 01-852-895-8196		
TO: 5A NBK COMMUNI (5A Recep	CATIONS CE	NTER		Date: _	4-22-97	
FAX No. (847) 272-2020 (If PRO PLEASE TRANSMIT TO: (Circle of	BLEMS (847) or Check as A	272–8800 X ppropriate)	2021)			
MEL SC CAM	RTP	нк	TW	TW	OTHER	
TOTAL No. PAGES 3			(FUS)	(ES)		
NAME. Steven U	Jest					
ORGANIZATION: USNR	C					
CITY, STATE, COUNTRY:		-			The second se	
FAX NO .: 301 415	357	7		Research in S <sub>4</sub> and an one of A		
SUBJECT: Transco						
MESSAGE: Followin which you reg	y are quest-col	tha	tas	+	6.servation	
Regards	u D C	2.6	Bha	2222		
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:						
REQUESTED BY: Johan	nson		EMPLO	YEE NO	: 17811	
DEPARTMENT/SECTION: 441	1 3	4 	EXT.;	420	, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	
NUMBER OF ATTEMPTS:			OPERA	TOR:		

2000-SA 1/96 \*\*\*SENCER WILL SS NOTIFIED IF TAKIE VISE ON DELAYED NOAE THAN TWO HOURS\*\*\*

# U Record of Test Observations

File No.: R18500 Project No.: 97NK4087 Date: April 10, 1997

Client: Transco Inc. Recorded By: M. Izydorek Page No. 1 of 2

Test Time	Exposed (E) or Unexposed (U)	Article	
11:1VIIII:Sec	Surtace	No.	Observation
0.0.5.00	Е	All	All of the exposed material was charred and black in color.
0:0:6:15	E	Ν	The bottom piece of material (the cap) fell form
0:08:22	E	в	Flames were issuing from the sample
0:09:40	Е	All	Flames issued from the exposed surfaces of the articles near the top of the exposed surface.
0:12:56	U	All	Smoke was issuing from the entire unexposed surface with the heaviest amount from Article H.
0:15:07	E	H	A crack, running in a North-South direction had developed at the West side of the article, the crack was 1/8 in, deep.
0:19:21	E	B,F,C,M	Flames continued to issue from the exposed surface of the articles.
0:20:03	E	All	The surfaces were becoming beige in color.
0:31:23	E	Н	There were gaps present between the banding straps and the bottom surface of the protection material.
0:37:36	Е	All	The surfaces were becoming white in color.
0:41:43	E	Р	There was a slight separation in the material on the bottom surface of the protection material.
0:52:57	E	Н	A Westerly view of the article shows a 1 in. separation near the West end on the bottom of the article.
1:10:26	E	J	On the South end of the article at the interface of the vertical and horizontal runs, there were two $1/4$ in, wide openings in the protection material.
1:29:37	E	Н	The area described at 0:15:07 had opened to a width of 2 in.
1:30:17	E	J	The openings described at 1:10:26 had closed.
1:33:28	E	G	A "flap" of protection material, 3 x 4 in., was hanging at the interface with the hanger.
1:35:18	E	Q	Heavy black smoke accompanied by flames was issuing from the article at the center and at both ends where it entered the furnace chamber. These flames were impinging on Article N
1:49:24	E	В	Flames and black smoke issued from the top of

Е	В	the sample. An area of flames issued from the bottom of the article at the interface with the support near the center of the article
Е	All	No significant changes observed
E	A	the West half of the article fell to the furnace floor.
Е	Q	The heavy black smoke ceased. Gray smoke issued from the center of the article at the bottom. The smoke was issuing from a smoke
Е	All	Slight changes in color had occurred
E	0	The crack described at 2:40:00 mms 2 in mide
E & U	A11	Fire test terminated.
	E E E E E & U	E B E All E Q E Q E & U

#### L Marsh

with the exception of test article B, a 30-inch wide steel cable tray with a 1-hour Versawrap fire barrier, it appeared that at least the innermost layer of foil (the foil attached directly to the raceway) remained intact during the hose stream test. For test article B, the foil on the bottom surface of the tray was breached, apparently by the force of the solid hose stream. GL 85-10, S 1, states, in part, that the fire endurance gualification test for fire barrier materials are successful if "[t]he cable tray, raceway, or component fire barrier system remained intact during the fire exposure and water hose stream test without developing any openings through which the cable tray, raceway, or component (e.g., cables) is visible.

On April 11, 1997, I observed ...ansco disassemble the fire barriers that remained on test articles H and P after the fire and hose stream tests. For both of these proposed 3-hour fire barrier designs, the inner layers of ioil, water filled mylar tubes, and fiber blankets remained largely intact. Many of these mylar ubes appeared to contain their original inventory of water and those that had leaked contained some water. In addition, the ordinary adhesive-backed strapping tape that was used to atlach the tubes to the raceways was largely free of fire damage.

One interesting part of the test was a test of a 12-inch by 12-inch by 8-inch thick silicone foam penetration seal that was penetrated by a 3/4-inch diameter steel conduit (test article N). In addition to the normal fire resistant damming board, the seal assembly included an outer layer of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth (on the fire side). According to Mr. Hawks, Transco considered this a "throw away" or research and development scoping test and did not instrument the seal assembly with thermocouples to obtain unexposed side temperatures. After the 3-hour fire exposure and hose stream test, Transco disassembled the penetrations seal. The seal assembly was intact. About 2 to 3 inches of the silicone foam material was consumed during the fire exposure. A full 5 to 6 inches of unreacted silicone foam material remained.

UL will base its determinations on the thermal performance of the test articles on its observations during the fire endurance and hose stream tests, analyzes of the electronically recorded thermocouple data, and consideration of both the maximum single point temperatures and the average unexposed side temperatures. Presumably, UL will also consider the effects of the problems with the thermocouples that were experienced during the test. Attachment 4 is UL's record of test observations.

Docket Nos.: 50-313, 50-282, and 50-306

Attachments: As stated

#### DISTRIBUTION (w/atts):

Central File PUBLIC Plant File Docket File

GHolahan SWest MSalley GKalman

SPLB Reading File BWetzel

Document Name: G:\SECTIONC\WEST\VWRAPTST.DOC

SC:SPLB:NRR SWest (1)

9705130324

OFFICIAL RECORD COPY



## UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555-0001

May 9, 1997

MEMORANDUM TO: L.B. Marsh, Chief Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

FROM: K. Steven West, Chief Fire Protection Engineering Section JUW Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

SUBJECT: TRIP REPORT - TRIP TO UNDERWRITERS LABORATORIES, INCORPORATED TO OBSERVE THREE HOUR FIRE TEST OF ONE AND THREE HOUR VERSAWRAP RACEWAY FIRE BARRIER SYSTEMS (TAC M32809)

During April 10 and 11, 1997, I visited to Underwriters Laboratories, Incorporated (UL), Northbrook, Illinois, to observe a full-scale fire endurance test of 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems. Attachment 1 is a list of individuals that observed or participated in the test. I interacted mostly with the individuals marked with asterisks.

Transco Products, Incorporated (Transco) is developing Versawrap as a stand-alone fire barrier or as an upgrade for such existing raceway fire barriers as Thermo-Lag 330-1. In general, Versawrap barriers are installed (from the item to be protected outward) as individual layers of foil, water filled mylar tubes, fiber blankets, foil, and intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth. The numbers and arrangements of the individual barrier components are dependent on the type of item to be protected (e.g., raceway, cable, support, etc.) and the desired fire rating. (Attachment 1 to a memorandum of April 15, 1997, from K.S. West to L.B. Marsh describes the components of a typical Versawrap barrier and their general arrangements.) Entergy Operations, Incorporated, is considering installing 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barriers at Arkansas Nuclear One, Unit 1, and Northern States Power is considering installing a 1-hour Versawrap barrier at Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station.

Attachment 2 is Transco Test Procedure TR-228, "Three Hour Fire Test of One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems for Conduits and Cable Trays," Revision 2, February 7, 1997. The test was a single 3 hour fire exposure followed by a solid-stream hose stream test that was intended to demonstrate the ability of both 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems (in the same test) to meet the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1 (GL 86-10, S 1).

CONTACT: K.S. West, NRR 301-415-1220

#### L. Marsh

The test specimen had been constructed and installed on the test furnace before I arrived at UL. Therefore, I did not observe fire barrier installation or thermocouple placement. The overall test specimen consisted of a steel and concrete deck from which 18 individual 1- and 3-hour test articles were suspended into UL's large floor furnace. According to Kevin Hawks, Transco, (1) Transco personnel installed the Versawrap fire barriers on the test articles in accordance with Transco instructions and procedures, (2) the test articles were instrumented in accordance with GL 86-10, S 1 (3) Transco quality control witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (4) UL quality control also independently witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (5) UL will prepare the fire test report. The test articles and the conditions which they were intended to bound are described in Attachment 2. I made pen and ink changes to Attachment 2 to reflect changes that Transco had made to the test articles articles after it issued the test procedure. Attachment 3 shows the test article layout, construction details, and thermocouple locations. The test articles, which did not contain cable fill, were instrumented with 438 thermocouples.

On the basis of my observations, it appeared that UL exposed the test specimen in accordance with the ASTM E-119 standard time-temperature curve for 3 hours. UL programmed its data acquisition computers to electronically record the test article thermocouple temperatures every two minutes. UL also printed the thermocouple temperatures about every five minutes. UL will use the electronically recorded temperature data to judge the fire endurance performance of the individual test articles. The printed temperatures were provided for contemporaneous information during the test. About midway through the fire exposure, Transco noticed some apparently anomalous thermocouple readings. For example, closely-spaced thermocouples were reporting vastly different temperatures. Upon examination, Transco found that the insulation had melted off of some thermocouple wires that were running on top of and in direct contact with the steel test deck. Apparently, at these points the thermocouples were measuring the temperature of the test deck rather than the temperatures of the test articles. After UL and Transco placed insulating blankets between the affected thermocouple wires and the steel test deck, the printed temperatures returned (dropped) to what appeared to be a more normal range. Transco indicated that UL would assess the impact of this event on the overall test results in its fire test report.

Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 61 minutes, it appeared that test articles A, B, C, D, L, O, and R met the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 1-hour fire rating while test articles E and Q did not. Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 2 hours and 55 minutes (the temperatures at 3 hours were not printed), it also appeared that test articles F, G, H, and I may meet the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 3-hour fire rating, but test articles J, K, M, N, and P will not.

Following the 3 hour fire exposure, UL subjected the test specimen to a solid hose stream test for 2-1/2 minutes. With the exception of test article P, most of the outer layers of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth, foil, and fiber blankets were knocked off of the bottom and side surfaces of the test article fire 'parriers by the force of the hose stream. The barrier on test article P remained intact and may not have been hit by the hose stream. In addition.

#### ATTACHMENT 1

List of Observers and Participants Fire Endurance Test of Versawrap Fire Barrier Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., Northbrook, Illinois April 10, 1997

K. Steven West Robert Goss\* Kevin Hawks\* Greg Jaroz\* Sandra Bradford\* John Kmetz Jeff Deminski Gary Sharisky Ed Johanson\* Chris Johnson Michael Allen Boomgarden Bill Joy Mark Pastor Herb Muller Mark Izydorek Sam Oolie Ron Rispoli\* Woody Walker\* Tom Lillehei Dan Langel

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Transco Products, Inc. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. No Fire Technologies Entergy Operations, Inc. Entergy Operations, Inc. Northern States Power Sargent and Lundy

14

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 1 of 13

# Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228

<u>ior</u> <u>Three Hour Fire Test of</u> <u>One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems</u> <u>for Conduits and Cable Trays</u>

# (TRANSCO PRODUCTS INC. PROJECT #AR-256)

Rev.:	Description:	By:	Date:	Ck:	Date:	App.:	Date:
0	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	02/07/97	K Hawks	02/07/97	R. Goss	02/07/97
1	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	01/97	K.Hawks	03/01/97	B.C. Mach- chhar	03/01/97
2	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	03/16/97	/ fightesh	03/17/97	(Part	3/17/97

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 2 of 13

# TABLE OF CONTENTS:

Title Page: Page 1
Table of Contents: Page 2
Section 1.0, Synopsis: Pages 3 - 8
Section 2.0. Test Furnace: Page 8
Section 3.0, Items to be Protected: Page 9
Section 4.0, Fire Barrier Material Installation: Page 9
Section 5.0, Thermocouples: Pages 9 - 11
Section 6.0, Fire Test. Page 11
Section 7.0, Hose Stream Test: Pages 11 - 12
Section 8.0, Test Report: Pages 12 - 13

# Attachments

Drawings:	Attachment "A",	Pages	13 of 13
USNRC Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1:	Attachment "B".	Pages	18 of 18

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 3 of 13

#### SECTION 1.0 SYNOPSIS:

Transco Fire Test #TR-228 will be a single fire test conducted in accordance with the performance requirements of NRC GL 86-10, Supplement 1 and the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve. The purpose of this test is to demonstrate the ability of both one and three hour *VERSAWRAP* raceway fire barrier systems (in the same test) to protect a variety of raceway conditions that are representative of those commonly found in nuclear power plants. Even though some of the barrier systems to be tested are only intended for one hour applications, they will be subjected to the full three hour fire test. In these cases, the one hour barrier specimens will be considered to be successful thermally if they meet the raceway temperature pass/fail criteria of GL 86-10 for the first hour of the fire test. After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, both one and three hour specimens will be subjected to a hose stream test in accordance with Section 7.0 of this procedure. Testing will be performed at Underwriters Laboratories (Northbrook, Illinois).

The overall test specimen will consist of a metal and concrete deck from which a number of simulated conduit and cable tray raceways will be suspended. The sizes and shapes of these raceways are intended to represent conditions that bound equivalent or less severe raceway configurations in the field. These bounding conditions to be qualified by this test are described below. The metal/concrete deck with its individual raceway specimens will be placed on top of a large floor furnace where the raceways will be subjected to the three hour fire endurance test. Immediately after the conclusion of the fire test, the deck and raceway specimens are lifted as a single unit from the furnace and will then be exposed to the hose stream test.

The raceway items to be tested and conditions they are intended to bound are as follows:

## ITEM: DESCR!TIION:

- "A" <u>2" x 2" Aluminum Solid-Back Cable Tray/Tube Track</u> This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition) as well as bundled steel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum raceways. Because this is a one hour wrap, it is only required to meet the thermal pass/fail requirements of GL 86-10 Supplement 1 for one hour whereas the hose stream test for this specimen will be performed immediacly after the three hour fire test. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical raceway sections, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper cable and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading.
- "B" <u>30" x 4" Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray</u> This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 30" x 4" (and all smaller sizes) of both aluminum and/or steel cable trays (aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "A" above) as well as bundled conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 4 of 13

"Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a single #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum raceways up to this size for hose stream test qualifications of *VERSAWRAP*. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap.

- "C" <u><sup>1</sup>/4</sub>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <sup>4</sup>/<sub>4</sub>" diameter rigid steel conduit and will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "D" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to demonstrate one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway specimen will fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "E" <u>34</u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit Near Concrete Barrier This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) located approximately 3/4" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 3/4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will use condulets at each end of the specimen on the exposed side of the deck. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit the impact of the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

echias.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 5 of 13

th: ee

Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hanger's and 3/4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit - This item is intended to bound enchour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 3/4" diameter conduit (as the most severe thermal mass) connected to a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped with VERSAWRAP as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

- "G" <u>2" x 2" Aluminum Solid-Back Cable Tra. Tube Track</u> -This item is intended to bound three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition) as well as bundled sateel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum trays. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. This item will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for small raceways.
- "H"  $30" \times 4"$  Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 30" x 4" and all smaller sizes of both aluminum and steel cable tray (aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "G" above) and bundled steel or aluminum conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum trays up to this size for hose stream test qualifications. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for both large tray and/or box wraps.

"I" <u><sup>3</sup>/</u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit - This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit in the field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 6 of 13

"J" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> -This item is intended to demonstrate three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this proc dure. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for large and small conduit wraps.

"K" <u>Y</u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit Near Concrete Barrier - This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit (the most severe thermal mass) found in the field that is located approximately <u>Y</u>" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <u>Y</u>" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize condulets at each end of the specimen. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit - the imparof the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered as a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a single #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

#### , one

"L" <u>Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hangers and ¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound threethour VERSAWRAP systems installed on a ¾" diameter rigid steel conduit as the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) connected to a hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

"M" <u>1-½</u> 'Diameter Steel Conduit and T&I "Thormo-Lag" Raceway Covered with Modified VERSAWRAP - This item is intended to bound "modified" one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 1-½" (and larger) diameter conduits in the field. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 1-½" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. The one hour Thermo-Lag material with be installed with "dry joints" (no trowel-grade Thermo-Lag will be used). A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on these raceway types. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 7 of 13

according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

"N" <u>12" x 12" x 16 Gauge Steel Box Attached to a %" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* conduit systems that interface with a one hour "Darmatt KM1" raceway barrier system installed on the box. The conduit will pass through a penetration seal to show wrap terminations as such. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1.

"O" <u>Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a ¾" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simulated junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.

"P" <u>Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a ¾" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simulated junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.

"Q" <u>3C-500MCM Aluminum Armored Cable</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on a 3C-500MCM aluminum armored cable as supplied by Northern States Power for their Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station. The 10' (minimum) span of cable will be temporarily supported by a rope about mid-span. During the test, the rope will burnfmelt and will allow the wrapped cable to be unsupported for the remainder of the fire test. The intent here is to show that the wrap will still be effective even if the cable suddenly becomes unsupported between hanger points (maximum distance as tested herein) in the field. (In the field, the cable is located in an aluminum tray suspended on steel hangers. The utility wishes to evaluate the possibility of wrapping only the cable instead of the entire tray. It is felt that if the aluminum tray is not wrapped, it will melt or be consumed during a fire thus leaving the cable unsupported except at points where the tray was suspended on steel hangers.)

"2" 3" × 3" angle - structural sheel

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 8 of 13

#### SECTION 2.0 TEST FURNACE:

The furnace to be used is Underwriters Laboratories' standard large floor furnace. The furnace shall be operated in accordance with the requirements of ASTM E-119 for the three hour fire test

#### SECTION 3.0 ITEMS TO BE PROTECTED:

The following is a description of the items to be used as raceway elements for the fire test:

(See Section 1.0, Synopsis for a general description of these items. Note: all steel trays and boxes will be manufactured from 16 gauge steel while all conduit will be standard, rigid conduit. All "free-cable air drops" will consist of single pieces of st~anded 8 AWG bare copper wire according to GL 86-10, Supplement 1 requirements. All hangers will be fabricated from standard "Unistrut" type material [hangers may be welded to the raceways for the test in lieu of using clips, straps, etc].)

An accurate description of specimen fabrication shall be included in the final test report (as verified by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control). Hardware substitutions are permitted provided substitute material (etc.) does not increase the heat mass of the specimen and are documented by Transco QC and UL.

#### SECTION 4.0 FIRE BARRIER MATERIAL INSTALLATION:

The VERSAWRAP and Transco Products Inc. TCO-001 materials shall be installed by Transco Products Inc. personnel in accordance with the manufacturer's instruction and/or procedures. If written instructions are not available at the time of installation, then Transco Products Inc. QC personnel shall document/verify step-by-step methods used for installation. Test installation records will be included as an appendix to the final test report.

A LUDDUD ALLOSS OF DITE OF STORES ADDISE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 9 of 13

Materials used for this test shall be purchased, received, and installed in accordance with latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Program and applicable procedures. All fire barrier envelope installation will be witnessed by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control personnel. Material components (except for tie wire and ceramic blanket) will be identified with the responsible QC's initials as each layer is installed.

<u>Note</u>: This test will be performed as a "Safety Related" quality program in accordance with the latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Manual (10CFR, Part 21 applies) with the exception that all materials will be provided as "Q-Class" with Certificates of Conformances.

#### SECTION 5.0 THERMOCOUPLES:

#### A.) Fire Barrier Envelope:

The fire barrier envelope is considered all areas of the specimen on the exposed side of the test slab. For these areas, thermocouples shall be mounted to the specimen to gather temperature data for the duration of the fire test. At a minimum, temperatures shall be documented at nominal two minute intervals for the duration of the test. Thermocouple placement for the fire barrier envelope (quantity and locations) shall be as specified in NRC GL 86-10 and Supplement 1 as follows:

".... Cable Trays - The temperature rise on the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a cable tray shall be measured by placing the thermocouples every 152 mm (6 - inches) on the exterior surface of each tray side rails between the cable tray side rail and the fire barrier material.

Internal raceway temperatures shall be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare copper conductor routed on the top of the cable tray rungs along the entire length and down the longitudinal center of the cable tray run with thermocouples installed every 152 mm (6- inches) along the length of the copper conductor. Thermocouples shall be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations. ..."(1)

"....Conduits - The temperature rise of the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a conduit should be measured by placing thermocouples every 152 mm [6 inches] on the exterior conduit surface between the conduit and the unexposed surface of the fire barrier material. These thermocouples should be attached to the exterior conduit surface opposite of the test deck and closest to the furnace fire source. The internal raceway temperatures should be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare cooper.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 10 of 13

conductor routed through the entire length of the conduit system with thermocouples installed every 152 mm [6 inches] along the length of the copper conductor. Thermocouples should also be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations...."(1)

Free-Cable Air Drops: Thermocouples will be installed on the stranded 8 AWG wire used for demonstrating the "free-cable air drop" every 152 mm [6 inches] in accordance with the same requirements for monitoring internal conduit/cable tray temperatures.

(Note: In accordance with NRC GL 86-10, Supplement 1 requirements, "for the thermocouples installed on conduits, cable tray side rails, and bare copper conductors,  $a \pm 13 \text{ mm} (\pm 1/2 \text{ inch})$  installation tolerance is acceptable". Hence, this tolerance shall be considered acceptable for use in this test. The tolerance is considered to be from the point of individual thermocouple placement and not compounded from one thermocouple to the next (i.e., all thermocouples can not be 6 1/2" from each other but rather must be  $\pm 1/2$ " from the measured 6" [minimum] mark on the item being monitored.)

Junction box thermocouples will be installed in accordance with the requirements of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1.

#### B.) Penetration Seal:

Thermocouple placement for the unexposed penetration seal surface (test item "N") will comply with the typical requirements of ASTM E814. As an optional method for protecting thermocouple tips, the thermojunctions of each thermocouple may be embedded into the seal surface or seal surface/penetrating member interface approximately  $V_8$  - $V_4$ " below the seal surface (because of the nature of the seal material, this placement can be performed at any time after the installation of the seal material). For this alternate method, insulation pads for covering the thermocouple tips will not be used.

All specimen temperatures shall be monitored using thermocouples (with special limits of error equal or less than 1.1°C). Thermojunctions of all specimen thermocouples shall be electrically welded. All thermocouple wire shall be supplied with certifications of purity, accuracy, and calibration.

Furnace atmosphere thermocouples shall be placed 12" below the furnace deck/slab as well as 12" away from representative elements of the test specimen accordance with ASTM E-119-88 requirements (not less than mine [9] thermocouples will be used to monitor furnace atmosphere temperatures). Additional furnace atmosphere thermocouples be employed around the specimen as it protrudes into the furnace. These will be placed at the laboratories discretion to supplement data acquisition in areas where furnace atmosphere thermocouples can not be mounted to satisfy ASTM E-119 requirements because of the specimen's configuration, et cetera

The installation and location of each uniquely identified thermocouple (for both the specimen and furnace) shall

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 11 of 13

be mapped and verified (measured) by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control. Verification may be performed as hand written notes and shall become part of the permanent records of the test. Also, all thermocouple certifications shall also become a permanent record of the test.

<sup>1</sup> Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

#### SECTION 6.0 FIRE TEST:

The fire test shall be conducted in accordance with the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve (and temperature tolerance) for a minimum of three (3) hours. As a minimum, temperature data provided by both furnace and specimen thermocouples should be monitored and documented at nominal two (2) minute intervals. The laboratory shall verify and document visual specimen performance and occurrences (*i.e.*, smoke, et cetera) for the duration of the test.

It is intent of the test to demonstrate as many different raceway configurations as possible. As such, several raceway test specimens exhibit multiple features (*i.e.*, the 3 hour large tray demonstrates the tray wrap, a "free-air" cable and interface, a wrap-to-concrete interface, *etc.*). If one of these features fails thermally or during the hose stream test, it is the intent of the test to then exclude that feature from the configuration being qualified. In the case of the large tray for example, if the "free-air" cable or wrap-to-concrete interface fails for any reason, it is does not cause the tray to fail provided the rest of the tray specimen meets the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. Any failed portion of a specimen will then not be qualified by this test.

#### SECTION 7.0 HOSE STREAM TEST:

After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, the fire barrier envelope specimen (along with the surrounding penetration seal) shall be subjected to a minimum of one of the following hose stream tests (as identified in NRC GL 80-10, Supplement 1):

(a.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 3.8 cm (1-1/2-inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 30 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75 psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at a maximum of 1.5 meters (5 feet) from the test specimen (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 minutes for both 1-hour and 3 -hour barriers); or<sup>2</sup>

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 12 of 13

- (b.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 6.4 cm (2 ½-inch) national standard playpipe with a 2.9 cm (1-1/8 -inch) orifice at a pressure of 207 kPa (30psi) at a distance of 6.1 meters (20 feet) from the specimen, (Duration of the hose stream application 1 minute for a 1-hour barrier and 2 ½ minutes for a 3-hour barrier); or"<sup>2</sup>
- (c.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through 3.8 cm (1 ½inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 15 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at a maximum of 3 meters (10 feet) from the test specimen. (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 minutes for both 1-hour and 3-hour barriers)."<sup>2</sup>

2: Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

The responsible QC shall verify and document the type of hose stream, distance, time et cetera employed in each hose stream test.

#### SECTION 8.0 TEST REPORT:

The laboratory performing the test shall provide a written report which accurately describes the following minimum elements of the test:

- 1.) Verification of specimen materials and dimensions used;
- Verification of fire barrier envelope materials, dimensions, and installation techniques (procedures) used;
- 3.) Verification of general furnace construction/dimensions and locations of burner, thermocouples, et cetera;
- Verification of specimen thermocouple locations (along with copies of thermocouple material certifications);
- 5.) Verification of standards used for conducting fire test along with record of both furnace atmosphere and specimen temperature data acquired during test;
- 6.) Record of furnace pressure during fire test.
- 7.) Record of visual occurrences observations of fire and hose stream tests;

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: Feb.uary 7, 1997 Page: 13 of 13

- Record of hose stream test(s);
- 9.) Photographic records of specimen before fire barrier envelope installation, after fire barrier installation, and post fire/hose stream tests;
- 10.) Post test observations including measurements of material loss/degradation, et cetera;
- 11.) Certification of the report by the agency performing test; and,
- 12.) QC records and notes from installati and test as an appendix to the report.
- 13.) Record of test items thermocouple temperature readings.

# ALL TEST RECORDS, NOTES, CERTIFICATIONS, REQUIRED BY THIS TEST WILL BE LEGIBLE AND SUITABLE FOR REPRODUCTION.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 1 of 13



TOUDDUD BUILD CARDEN CONTRACTOR CONTRACTOR

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 2 of 13



PLAN VIEW

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 3 of 13



# ELEVATION OF A & G

ITEM A DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE
Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 4 of 13



# ELEVATION OF B & H ITEM B DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 5 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 6 of 13



ELEVATION OF D & J ITEM D DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE STANDARD 4"¢ RIGID STEEL CONDUIT

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 7 of 13



CONDINE OTHER OF THE PERSON STREET

ELEVATION OF E & K

Transco Products Inc Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 8 of 13



ELEVATION OF F & L

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 9 of 13



ELEVATION OF M

A MARRAR ATTAK AD THE MARK MEAN ADAMS A

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 10 of 13



12" X 12" X 12" CONDUIT MOUNTED DARMATT J-BOX

ELEVATION OF N

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 11 of 13



: ELEVATION OF O 1 HOUR INSTALLATION

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 12 of 13



# ELEVATION OF P 3 HOUR INSTALLATION



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 13 of 13



3C-500MCM ALUMINUM ARMORED CABLE FURNISHED BY NORTHERN STATES POWER TO BOUND PRAIRIE ISLAND SITE SPECIFIC INSTALLATION



ARTICLE	TC NOS.	ARTICLE	TC NOS
A	194-234		324-349 & 426
8	128-160 & 411-413	Ř	112-127
Ċ	39-67		377-384 & 427
D	350-376	M	68-95
Ē.	96-111	N	407-410 & 417-420
F	1-8 & 428	0	299-323
0	236-273	P	274-298
	161-193 & 414-416	0	429-438
	Q (R	12	385-406

TEST ARTICLE LAYOUT & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS

I NORTH

I'M WEINGRY , D



SOUTH SIDE

WEST END

NORTH SIDE

TC NOS. 222-234 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO. 222 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 194 AND 208 ON TUBE TRACK.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE A



CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE B



TC NOS. 54-67 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 54 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 39.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE C

- EAST





TC NOS. 364-376 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE D

EAST-- 36"-4-1/2" THICK-3/4" STEEL CONCRETE CONDUIT 5/8' FLOOR SLAB 1971 10121007 104-96 1034 997 102 98 TC NOS. 105-111 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 105 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 96. CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE E





SOUTH SIDE

EAST END

NORTH SIDE

TC NOS. 261-273 (6" OC) ON NO 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO. 261 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 235 AND 248 ON TUBE TRACK

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE G



CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE H



TC NOS. 25-38 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 25 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 9.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE I

EAST





TC NOS. 338-349 & 426 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350. TC NO. 426 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 337.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS-ARTICLE J





TC NOS. 377-380 ON EAST SIDE OF CONDUIT. TC NOS. 381-384 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 381 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 377.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE L



TC NOS. 82-95 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 82 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 68.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE M

EAST



TC NOS. 417-420 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 417 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 407.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE N



TC NOS. 316-323 (6"OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 316 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 299 & 300. TC NOS. 321-323 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE O



NORTH SIDE

#### WEST SIDE

SOUTH SIDE

EAST SIDE

TC NOS. 291-298 (6"OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 291 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 274 & 275. TC NOS. 296-298 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE P

WEST ----4" THICK SICEL PLATE WITH 4" THICKNESS OF CERAMIC FIBER BLANKET INSULATION 429-- 434 430---- 435 431-436 432-437 433-- 438 4"x4"x1/4" VERTICAL STEEL ANGLE CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE R



NBK - FACSIMILE REQU	EST FORM MUNUTINENI						
Image: Weight of the second state Eax NUMBERS   ME (516) 271-8259   RTP (919) 549-1842   SC (408) 296-3256   CAM (360) 817-6000   TW-FUS 01-886-2-717-2405   TW-ES 01-886-2-891-7644   HK 01-8852-695-8196							
TO: 5A NBK COMMUNICATIONS CENTER (5A Reception)	Date: 4-22-97						
FAX No. (847) 272-2020 (If PROBLEMS (847) 272-8800 X 2021) PLEASE TRANSMIT TO: (Circle or Check as Appropriate)							
MEL SC CAM RTP HK	TW TW OTHER						
TOTAL No. PAGES 3							
NAME: Steven West							
ORGANIZATION: USNRC							
CITY. STATE, COUNTRY:							
FAX NO .: 301 415 3577							
SUBJECT: Transco							
MESSAGE: Following are the	test abcorrection						
which you requested	and the state of t						
Rectords	-> /						
- Augola	spanan -						
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:							
REQUESTED BY: Johanson	EMPLOYEE NO .: 17 FI						
DEPARTMENT/SECTION: 4411 13	EXT :: 42075						
NUMBER OF ATTEMPTS:	OPERATOR:						

# Record of Test Observations

File No.: R18500 Project No.: 97NK4087 Date: April 10, 1997

22

Client: Transco Inc. Recorded By: M. Izydorek Page No. 1 of 2

	Exposed (E) or		
Test Time	Unexposed (U)	Article	
Hr:Min:Sec	Surface	No.	Observation
0:0:5:00	E	All	All of the exposed material was charred and
			black in color.
0:0:6:15	E	N	The bottom piece of material (the cap) fell form
			the article.
0:08:22	E	В	Flames were issuing from the sample.
0:09:40	Е	All	Flames issued from the exposed surfaces of the
			articles near the top of the exposed surface.
0:12:56	U	All	Smoke was issuing from the entire unexposed
			surface with the heaviest amount from Article H.
0:15:07	Е	H	A crack, running in a North-South direction had
			developed at the West side of the article, the
			crack was 1/8 in. deen.
0:19:21	Е	B.F.C.M	Flames continued to issue from the exposed
			surface of the articles.
0:20:03	Е	All	The surfaces were becoming beige in color.
0:31:23	Е	Н	There were gaps present between the handing
			straps and the bottom surface of the protection
			material.
0:37:36	Е	All	The surfaces were becoming white in color.
0:41:43	E	р	There was a slight senaration in the material on
			the bottom surface of the protection material
0:52:57	E	н	A Westerly view of the article shows a 1 in.
			separation near the West end on the bottom of
			the article.
1:10:26	Е	J	On the South end of the article at the interface of
		영화 기억 문	the vertical and horizontal runs, there were two
			1/4 in wide openings in the protection material
1:29:37	Е	н	The area described at 0:15:07 had opened to a
			width of 2 in.
1:30:17	Е	J	The openings described at 1:10:26 had closed
1:33:28	E	G	A "flap" of protection material 3 x 4 in., was
			hanging at the interface with the hanger
1:35:18	E	0	Heavy black smoke accompanied by flames was
			issuing from the article at the center and at both
			ends where it entered the furnace chamber
			These flames were impinging on Article M
1:49:24	T.	R	Flames and black smoke issued from the top of
	**	10	i lances and otack shipke issued from the top of

1.50.21	같아. 그 많은 사람		the sample.
1:50:31	Е	В	An area of flames issued from the bottom of the article at the interface with the support near the center of the article.
2:00:00	Е	All	No significant changes observed
2:16:00	E		the Wart half of the state of the
	~	n	floor
2.25.25	E	0	1001.
	E	Q	issued from the center of the article at the
2.40.00	17		bottom. The smoke was issuing from a crack.
2.40.00	E	All	Slight changes in color had occurred
2:41:03	E	Q	The crack described at 2:40:00 was 2 in wide
3:00:00	E & U	All	Fire test terminated.

#### L. Marsh

with the exception of test article B, a 30-inch wide steel cable tray with a 1-hour Versawrap fire barrier, it appeared that at least the innermost layer of foil (the foil attached directly to the raceway) remained intact during the hose stream test. For test article B, the foil on the bottom surface of the tray was breached, apparently by the force of the solid hose stream. GL 86-10, S 1, states, in part, that the fire endurance qualification test for fire barrier materials are successful if "[t]he cable tray, raceway, or component fire barrier system remained intact during the fire exposure and water hose stream test without developing any openings through which the cable tray, raceway, or component (e.g., cables) is visible.

On April 11, 1997, I observed Transco disassemble the fire barriers that remained on test articles H and P after the fire and hose stream tests. For both of these proposed 3-hour fire barrier designs, the inner layers of foil, water filled mylar tubes, and fiber blankets remained largely intact. Many of these mylar tubes appeared to contain their original inventory of water and those that had leaked contained some water. In addition, the ordinary adhesive-backed strapping tape that was used to attach the tubes to the raceways was largely free of fire damage.

One interesting part of the test was a test of a 12-inch by 12-inch by 8-inch thick silicone foam penetration sea. 'hat was penetrated by a %-inch diameter steel conduit (test article N). In addition to the normal fire resistant damming board, the seal assembly included an outer layer of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth (on the fire side). According to Mr. Hawks, Transco considered this a "throw away" or research and development scoping test and did not instrument the seal assembly with thermocouples to obtain unexposed side temperatures. After the 3-hour fire exposure and hose stream test, Transco disassembled the penetrations seal. The seal assembly was intact. About 2 to 3 inches of the silicone foam material was consumed during the fire exposure. A full 5 to 6 inches of unreacted silicone foam material remained.

UL will base its determinations on the thermal performance of the test articles on its observations during the fire endurance and hose stream tests, analyses of the electronically recorded thermocouple data, and consideration of both the maximum single point temperatures and the average unexposed side temperatures. Presumably, UL will also consider the effects of the problems with the thermocouples that were experienced during the test. Attachment 4 is UL's record of test observations.

Docket Nos.: 50-313, 50-282, and 50-306

Attachments: As stated

#### DISTRIBUTION (w/atts):

Central File PUBLIC Plant File Docket File GHolahan SWest MSalley GKaiman SPLB Reading File BWetzel

Document Name: G:\SECTIONC\WEST\VWRAPTST.DOC

SC:SPLB:NRR SWest (1) 04/ 197

970513032

OFFICIAL RECORD COPY



## UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555-0001

May 9, 1997

MEMORANDUM TO: L.B. Marsh, Chief Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

FROM:

K. Steven West, Chief Fire Protection Engineering Section Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

SUBJECT: TRIP REPORT - TRIP TO UNDERWRITERS LABORATORIES, INCORPORATED TO OBSERVE THREE HOUR FIRE TEST OF ONE AND THREE HOUR VERSAWRAP RACEWAY FIRE BARRIER SYSTEMS (TAC M82809)

During April 10 and 11, 1997, I visited to Underwriters Laboratories, Incorporated (UL), Northbrook, Illinois, to observe a full-scale fire endurance test of 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems. Attachment 1 is a list of individuals that observed or participated in the test. I interacted mostly with the individuals marked with asterisks.

Transco Products, Incorporated (Transco) is developing Versawrap as a stand-alone fire barrier or as an upgrade for such existing raceway fire barriers as Thermo-Lag 330-1. In general, Versawrap barriers are installed (from t' e item to be protected outward) as individual layers of foil, water filled mylar tubes, fiber blankets, foil, and intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth. The numbers and arrangements of the individual barrier components are dependent on the type of item to be protected (e.g., raceway, cable, support, etc.) and the desired fire rating. (Attachment 1 to a memorandum of April 15, 1997, from K.S. West to L.B. Marsh describes the components of a typical Versawrap barrier and their general arrangements.) Entergy Operations, Incorporated, is considering installing 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barriers at Arkansas Nuclear One, Unit 1, and Northern States Power is considering installing a 1-hour Versawrap barrier at Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station.

Attachment 2 is Transco Test Procedure TR-228, "Three Hour Fire Test of One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems for Conduits and Cable Trays," Revision 2, Fabruary 7, 1997. The test was a single 3 hour fire exposure followed by a solid-stream hose stream test that was intended to demonstrate the ability of both 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems (in the same test) to meet the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1 (GL 86-10, S 1).

CONTACT: K.S. West, NRR 301-415-1220 The test specimen had been constructed and installed on the test furnace before I arrived at UL. Therefore, I did not observe fire barrier installation or thermocouple placement. The overall test specimen consisted of a steel and concrete deck from which 18 individual 1- and 3-hour test articles were suspended into UL's large floor furnace. According to Kevin Hawks, Transco, (1) Transco personnel installed the Versawrap fire barriers on the test articles in accordance with Transco instructions and procedures, (2) the test articles were instrumented in accordance with GL 86-10, S 1 (3) Transco quality control witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (4) UL quality control also independently witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (5) UL will prepare the fire test report. The test articles and the conditions which they were intended to bound are described in Attachment 2. I made pen and ink changes to Attachment 2 to reflect changes that Transco had made to the test articles after it issued the test procedure. Attachment 3 shows the test article layout, construction details, and thermocouple locations. The test articles, which did not contain cable fill, were instrumented with 438 thermocouples.

On the basis of my observations, it appeared that UL exposed the test specimen in accordance with the ASTM E-119 standard time-temperature curve for 3 hours. UL programmed its data acquisition computers to electronically record the test article thermocouple temperatures every two minutes. UL also printed the thermocouple temperatures about every five minutes. UL will use the electronically recorded temperature data to judge the fire endurance performance of the individual test articles. The printed temperatures were provided for contemporaneous information during the test. About midway through the fire exposure. Transco noticed some apparently anomalous thermocouple readings. For example, closely-spaced thermocouples were reporting vastly different temperatures. Upon examination, Transco found that the insulation had melted off of some the mocouple wires that were running on top of and in direct contact with the steel test deck. Apparently, at these points the thermocouples were measuring the temperature of the test deck rather than the temperatures of the test articles. After UL and Transco placed insulating blankets between the affected thermocouple wires and the steel test deck, the printed temperatures returned (dropped) to what appeared to be a more normal range. Transco indicated that UL would assess the impact of this event on the overall test results in its fire test report.

Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 61 minutes, it appeared that test articles A, B, C, D, L, O, and R met the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 1-hour fire rating while test articles E and Q did not. Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 2 hours and 55 minutes (the temperatures at 3 hours were not printed), it also appearr d that test articles F, G, H, and I may meet the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 3-hour fire rating, but test articles J, K, M, N, and P will not.

Following the 3 hour fire exposure. UL subjected the test specimen to a solid hose stream test for 2-1/2 minutes. With the exception of test article P, most of the outer layers of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth, foil, and fiber blankets were knocked off of the bottom and side surfaces of the test article fire barriers by the force of the hose stream. The barrier on test article P remained intact and may not have been hit by the hose stream. In addition.

#### ATTACHMENT 1

List of Observers and Participants Fire Endurance Test of Versawrap Fire Barrier Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., Northbrook, Illinois April 10, 1997

K. Steven West Robert Goss\* Kevin Hawks\* Greg Jaroz\* Sandra Bradford\* John Kmetz Jeff Deminski Gary Sharisky Ed Johanson\* Chris Johnson Michael Allen Boomgarden Bill Joy Mark Pastor Herb Muller Mark Izydorek Sam Oolie Ron Rispoli\* Woody Walker\* Tom Lillehei Dan Langel

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Transco Products. Inc. Transco Products, Inc. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. No Fire Technologies Entergy Operations, Inc. Entergy Operations, Inc. Northern States Power Sargent and Lundy
ATTACHMENTL

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 1 of 13

## Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228

<u>for</u> <u>Three Hour Fire Test of</u> <u>One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems</u> <u>for Conduits and Cable Trays</u>

#### (TRANSCO PRODUCTS INC. PROJECT #AR-256)

Rev.:	Description:	By:	Date:	Ck:	Date:	App.:	Date:
0	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	02/07/97	K.Hawks	02/07/97	R. Goss	02/07/97
1	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	03/01/97	K.Hawks	03/01/97	B.C. Mach- chhar	03/01/97
2	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	03/16/97	Kughen	03/17/97	(Part	3/17/97

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: Februa: 7, 1997 Page: 2 of 13

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS:

Title Page:
Table of Contents: Page 2
Section 1.0, Synopsis: Pages 3 - 8
Section 2.0. Test Furnace: Page 8
Section 3.0, Items to be Protected Page 9
Section 4.0, Fire Barrier Material Installation: Page 9
Section 5.0, Thermocouples: Pages 9 - 11
Section 6.0, Fire Test:
Section 7.0, Hose Stream Test: Pages 11 - 12
Section 8.0, Test Report: Pages 12 - 13

#### Attachments:

Drawings:	Attachment "A", Pages 13 of 12
USNRC Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1:	Attachment "B", Pages 18 of 18

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 3 of 13

#### SECTION 1.0 SYNOPSIS:

Transco Fire Test #TR-228 will be a single fire test conducted in accordance with the performance requirements of NRC GL 86-10, Supplement 1 and the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve. The purpose of this test is to demonstrate the ability of both one and three hour *VERSAWRAP* raceway fire barrier systems (in the same test) to protect a variety of raceway conditions that are representative of those commonly found in nuclear power plants. Even though some of the barrier systems to be tested are only intended for one hour applications, they will be subjected to the full three hour fire test. In these cases, the one hour barrier specimens will be considered to be successful thermally if they meet the raceway temperature pass/fail criteria of GL 86-10 for the first hour of the fire test. After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, both one and three hour specimens will be subjected to a hose stream test in accordance with Section 7.0 of this procedure. Testing will be performed at Underwriters Laboratories (Northbrook, Illinois).

The overall test specimen will consist of a metal and concrete deck from which a number of simulated conduit and cable tray raceways will be suspended. The sizes and shapes of these raceways are intended to represent conditions that bound equivalent or less severe raceway configurations in the field. These bounding conditions to be qualified by this test are described below. The metal/concrete deck with its individual raceway specimens will be placed on top of a large floor furnace where the raceways will be subjected to the three hour fire endurance test. Immediately after the conclusion of the fire test, the deck and raceway specimens are lifted as a single unit from the furnace and will then be exposed to the hose stream test.

The raceway items to be tested and conditions they are intended to bound are as follows:

#### **ITEM: DESCRIPTION:**

- "A" <u>2" x 2" Alum num Solid-Back Cable Tray/Tube Track</u> This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition.) as well as bundled steel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum raceways. Because this is a one hour wrap, it is only required to meet the thermal pass/fail requirements of GL 86-10 Supplement 1 for one hour whereas the hose stream test for this specimen will be performed immediately after the three hour fire test. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical raceway sections, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper cable and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading.
- "B" <u>30" x 4" Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray</u> This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 30" x 4" (and all smaller sizes) of both aluminum: and/or steel cable trays (aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "A" above) as well as bundled conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 4 of 13

"Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a single #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum raceways up to this size for hose stream test qualifications of *VERSAWRAP*. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap.

- "C" <u><sup>3</sup>/</u><sup>a</sup> Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>" diameter rigid steel conduit and will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel conduit and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "D" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to demonstrate one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway specimen will fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "E" <u>34</u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit Near Concrete Barrier This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) located approximately 34" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 34" diameter rigid steel conduit that will use condulets at each end of the specimen on the exposed side of the deck. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit. (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit - the impact of the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

three

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 5 of 13

"F" <u>Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hangers and ¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound enchour VERSAWRAP systems installed on ¾" diameter conduit (as the most severe thermal mass) connected to a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped with VERSAWRAP as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

"G" <u>2" x 2" Aluminum Solid-Back Cable Trav Tube Track</u> -This item is intended to bound three hour *VEKSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition) as well as bundled sateel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum trays. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. This item will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for small raceways.

"H" <u>30" x 4" Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray</u> - This item is intended to bound three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on 30" x 4" and all smaller sizes of both aluminum and steel cable tray (*aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "G" above*) and bundled steel or aluminum conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum trays up to this size for hose stream test qualifications. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for both large tray and/or box wraps.

"I" <u>34" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit in the field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 34" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius be...I. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 6 of 13

- "J" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> -This item is intended to demonstrate three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for large and small conduit wraps.
- "K" <u>Van Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit Near Concrete Barrier</u> This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit (the most severe thermal mass) found in the field that is located approximately <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize condulets at each end of the specimen. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit - the impact of the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered as a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a single #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

#### , one

- "L" <u>Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hangers and ¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on a ¾" diameter rigid steel conduit as the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) connected to a hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "M" <u>1-½</u>" Diameter Steel Conduit and TSI "Thermo-Lag" Raceway Covered with Modified VERSAWRAP - This item is intended to bound "modified" one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 1-½" (and larger) diameter conduits in the field. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 1-½" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. The one hour Thermo-Lag material will be installed with "dry joints" (no trowel-grade Thermo-Lag will be used). A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on these raceway types. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 7 of 13

according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

- "N" 12" x 12" x 12" x 16 Gauge Steel Box Attached to a 1/4" Diameter Steel Conduit - This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP conduit systems that interface with a one hour "Darmatt KMH" raceway barrier system installed on the box. The conduit will pass through a penetration seal to show wrap terminations as such. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1
- "O" Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a 3/2" Diameter Steel Conduit - This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simulated junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.
- 44 D12 Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a 1/2" Diameter Steel Conduit - This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simulated junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.

## aluminum hanger

3C-500MCM Aluminum Armored Cable - This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems "O" installed on a 3C-500MCM aluminum armored cable as supplied by Northern States Power for their Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station. The 10' (minimum) span of cable will be temporarily supported by a rope about mid-span. During the test, the rope will burn melt and will allow the wrapped cable to be unsupported for the remainder of the fire test. The intent here is to show that the wrap will still be aluminum Unistrut trapeze-style hanger effective even if the cable suddenly becomes unsupported between hanger points (maximum distance as tested herein) in the field. (In the field, the cable is located in an aluminum tray suspended on steel hangers. The utility wishes to evaluate the possibility of wrapping only the cable instead of the entire tray. It is felt that if the aluminum tray is not wrapped, it will melt or be consumed during a fire thus leaving the cable unsupported except at points where the tray was suspended on steel hangers.)

""" 3" × 3" angle - structural steel

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 8 of 13

#### SECTION 2.0 TEST FURNACE:

The furnace to be used is Underwriters Laboratories' standard large floor furnace. The furnace shall be operated in accordance with the requirements of ASTM E-119 for the three hour fire test

#### SECTION 3.0 ITEMS TO BE PROTECTED:

The following is a description of the items to be used as raceway elements for the fire test:

(See Section 1.0, Synopsis for a general description of these items. Note: all steel trays and boxes will be manufactured from 16 gauge steel while all conduit will be standard, rigid conduit. All "free-cable air drops" will consist of single pieces of st~anded 8 AWG bare copper wire according to GL 86-10, Supplement 1 requirements. All hangers will be fabricated from standard "Unistrut" type material [hangers may be welded to the raceways for the test in lieu of using clips, straps, etc].)

An accurate description of specimen fabrication shall be included in the final test report (as verified by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control). Hardware substitutions are permitted provided substitute material (etc.) does not increase the heat mass of the specimen and are documented by Transco QC and UL.

#### SEC 11ON 4.0 FIRE BARRIER MATCHIAL INSTALLATION:

The VERSAWRAP and Transco Products Inc. TCO-001 materials shall be installed by Transco Products Inc. personnel in accordance with the manufacturer's instruction and/or procedures. If written instructions are not available at the time of installation, then Transco Products Inc. QC personnel shall document/verify step-by-step methods used for installation. Test installation records will be included as an appendix to the final test report.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 9 of 13

Materials used for this test shall be purchased, received, and installed in accordance with latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Program and applicable procedures. All fire barrier envelope installation will be witnessed by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control personnel. Material components (except for tie wire and ceramic blanket) will be identified with the responsible QC's initials as each layer is installed.

<u>Note</u>: This test will be performed as a "Safety Related" quality program in accordance with the latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Manual (10CFR, Part 21 applies) with the exception that all materials will be provided as "Q-Class" with Certificates of Conformances.

#### SECTION 5.0 THERMOCOUPLES:

#### A.) Fire Earrier Envelope:

The fire barrier envelope is considered all areas of the specimen on the exposed side of the test slab. For these areas, thermocouples shall be mounted to the specimen to gather temperature data for the duration of the fire test. At a minimum, temperatures shall be documented at nominal two minute intervals for the duration of the test. Thermocouple placement for the fire barrier envelope (quantity and locations) shall be as specified in NRC GL 86-10 and Supplement 1 as follows:

".... Cable Trays - The temperature rise on the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a cable tray shall be measured by placing the thermocouples every 152 mm (6 - inches) on the exterior surface of each tray side rails between the cable tray side rail and the fire barrier material.

Internal raceway temperatures shall be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare copper conductor routed on the top of the cable tray rungs along the entire length and down the longitudinal center of the cable tray run with thermocouples installed every 1.2 mm (6- inches) along the length of the copper conductor. Thermocouples shall be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations...."(1)

"....Conduits - The temperature rise of the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a conduit should be measured by placing thermocouples every 152 mm [6 inches] on the exterior conduit surface between the conduit and the unexposed surface of the fire barrier material. These thermocouples should be attached to the exterior conduit surface opposite of the test deck and closest to the furnace fire source. The internal raceway temperatures should be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare copper

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 10 of 13

conductor routed through the entire length of the conduit system with thermocouples installed every 152 mm [6 inches] along the length of the copper conductor Thermocouples should also be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations...."(1)

**Free-Cable Air Drops**: Thermocouples will be installed on the stranded 8 AWG wire used for demonstrating the "free-cable air drop" every 152 mm [6 inches] in accordance with the same requirements for monitoring internal conduit/cable tray temperatures.

(Note: In accordance with NRC GL 86-1C, Supplement 1 requirements, "for the thermocouples installed on conduits, cable tray side rails, and bare copper conductors,  $a \pm 13 \text{ mm} (\pm 1/2 \text{ inch})$  installation tolerance is acceptable". Hence, this tolerance shall be considered acceptable for use in this test. The tolerance is considered to be from the point of individual thermocouple placement and not compounded from one thermocouple to the next (i.e., all thermocouples can not be 6 1/2" from each other but rather must be  $\pm 1/2$ " from the measured 6" [minimum] mark on the item being monitored.)

Junction box thermocouples will be installed in accordance with the requirements of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1.

#### B.) Penetration Seal:

Thermocouple placement for the unexposed penetration seal surface (test item "N") will comply with the typical requirements of ASTM E814. As an optional method for protecting thermocouple tips, the thermojunctions of each thermocouple may be embedded into the seal surface or seal surface/penetrating member interface approximately  $\frac{1}{16} - \frac{1}{14}$ " below the seal surface (because of the nature of the seal material, this placement can be performed at any time after the installation of the seal material). For this alternate method, insulation pads for covering the thermocouple tips will not be used.

All specimen temperatures shall be monitored using thermocouples (with special limits of error equal or less than 1.1°C). Thermojunctions of all specimen thermocouples shall be electrically welded. All thermocouple wire shall be supplied with certifications of purity, accuracy, and calibration.

Furnace atmosphere thermocouples shall be placed 12" below the furnace deck/slab as well as 12" away from representative elements of the test specimen accordance with ASTM E-119-88 requirements (not less than nine [9] thermocouples will be used to monitor furnace atmosphere temperatures). Additional furnace atmosphere thermocouples be employed around the specimen as it protrudes into the furnace. These will be placed at the laboratories discretion to supplement data acquisition in areas where furnace atmosphere thermocouples can not be mounted to satisfy ASTM E-119 requirements because of the specimen's configuration, et cetera.

The installation and location of each uniquely identified thermocouple (for both the specimen and furnace) shall

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 11 of 13

be mapped and verified (measured) by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control. Verification may be performed as hand written notes and shall become part of the permanent records of the test. Also, all thermocouple certifications shall also become a permanent record of the test.

<sup>1</sup> Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

#### SECTION 6.0 FIRE TEST:

The fire test shall be conducted in accordance with the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve (and temperature tolerance) for a minimum of three (3) hours. As a minimum, temperature data provided by both furnace and specimen thermocouples should be monitored and documented at nominal two (2) minute intervals. The laboratory shall verify and document visual specimen performance and occurrences (*i.e.*, smoke, et cetera) for the duration of the test.

It is intent of the test to demonstrate as many different raceway configurations as possible. As such, several raceway test specimens exhibit multiple features (*i.e.*, the 3 hour large tray demonstrates the tray wrap, a "free-air" cable and interface, a wrap-to-concrete interface, *etc.*). If one of these features fails thermally or during the hose stream test, it is the intent of the test to then exclude that feature from the configuration being qualified. In the case of the large tray for example, if the "free-air" cable or wrap-to-concrete interface fails for any reason, it is does not cause the tray to fail provided the rest of the tray specimen meets the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. Any failed portion of a specimen will then not be qualified by this test.

#### SECTION 7.0 HOSE STREAM TEST:

After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, the fire barrier envelope specimen (along with the surrounding penetration seal) shall be subjected to a minimum of one of the following hose stream tests (as identified in NRC GL 86-10, Supplement 1):

(a.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 3.8 cm (1-1/2-inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 30 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75 psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at a maximum of 1.5 meters (5 feet) from the test specimen. (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 minutes for both 1-hour and 3 -hour barriers); or<sup>2</sup>

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 12 of 13

- (b.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 6.4 cm (2 ½-inch) national standard playpipe with a 2.9 cm (1-1/8 -inch) orifice at a pressure of 207 kPa (30psi) at a distance of 6.1 meters (20 feet) from the specimen, (Duration of the hose stream application 1 minute for a 1-hour barrier and 2 ½ minutes for a 3-hour barrier); or"<sup>2</sup>
- (c.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through 3.8 cm (1 ½inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 15 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at c maximum of 3 meters (10 feet) from the test specimen. (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 minutes for both 1-hour and 3-hour barriers)."<sup>2</sup>

The responsible QC shall verify and document the type of hose stream, distance, time et cetera employed in each hose stream test.

#### SECTION 8.0 TEST REPORT:

The laboratory performing the test shall provide a written report which accurately describes the following minimum elements of the test:

- 1.) Verification of specimen materials and dimensions used;
- Verification of fire barrier envelope materials, dimensions, and installation techniques (procedures) used;
- 3.) Verification of general furnace construction/dimensions and locations of burner, thermocouples, et cetera;
- Verification of specimen thermocouple locations (along with copies of thermocouple material certifications);
- 5.) Verification of standards used for conducting fire test along with record of both furnace atmosphere and specimen temperature data acquired during test;
- 6.) Record of furnace pressure during fire test,
- Record of visual occurrences/observations of fire and hose stream tests;

<sup>2.</sup> Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 13 of 13

- Record of hose stream test(s);
- 9.) Photographic records of specimen before fire barrier envelope installation, after fire barrier installation, and post fire/hose stream tests;
- 10.) Post test observations including measurements of material loss/degradation, et cetera;
- 11.) Certification of the report by the agency performing test; and,
- 12.) QC records and notes from installation and test as an appendix to the report.
- 13.) Record of test items thermocouple temperature readings.

#### ALL TEST RECORDS, NOTES, CERTIFICATIONS, REQUIRED BY THIS TEST WILL BE LEGIBLE AND SUITABLE FOR REPRODUCTION

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 1 of 13



F UUDDUD FURUE, UN MELL WHITELOW WHILE A

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 2 of 13



PLAN VIEW

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 3 of 13



## ELEVATION OF A & G

# ITEM A DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 4 of 13



# ELEVATION OF B & H

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 5 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 6 of 13



ELEVATION OF D & J ITEM D DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE STANDARD 4"Ø RIGID STEEL CONDUIT

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 7 of 13



ELEVATION OF E & K

a month reports a restriction of the month stars a gamman support and

Transco Products Inc Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 8 of 13



## ELEVATION OF F & L

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 9 of 13



ELEVATION OF M

CODDOD TTOX OF THE TO WE HAD DONNED

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 10 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 11 of 13



1 HOUR INSTALLATION

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 12 of 13



# ELEVATION OF P 3 HOUR INSTALLATION

1



ELEVATION OF Q

3C-500MCM ALUMINUM ARMORED CABLE FURNISHED BY NORTHERN STATES POWER TO BOUND PRAIRIE ISLAND SITE SPECIFIC INSTALLATION Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 13 of 13



NORTH



ARTICLE	TC NOS.	ARTICLE	TC NOS
A	194-234	J	324-349 & 426
8	128-160 & 411-413	ĸ	112-127
C	39-67		377-384 & 427
0	350-376	N/	68-95
Ē	96-111	N	407-410 & 417-420
F	1-8 & 428	0	299-323
	235-273	p.	274-298
	161-193 & 414-416	0	429-438
	9-38	R	386-406

TEST ARTICLE LAYOUT & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS



SOUTH SIDE

WEST END

NORTH SIDE

TC NOS 222-234 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO 222 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 194 AND 208 ON TUBE TRACK.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE A



CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE B



- EAST

TC NOS. 54-67 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 54 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 39.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE C





TC NOS. 364-376 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE D







SOUTH SIDE

EAST END

NORTH SIDE

TC NOS. 261-273 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO. 261 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 235 AND 248 ON TUBE TRACK.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE G



CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE H



TC NOS. 25-38 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 25 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 9.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE I

- EAST




TC NOS. 338-349 & 426 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350. TC NO. 426 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 337.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS-ARTICLE J





TC NOS. 381-384 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 381 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 377.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE L



EAST

TC NOS. 82-95 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 82 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 68.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE M



CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE N



TC NOS 316-323 (6 OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 316 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 299 & 300. TC NOS. 321-323 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE O



TC NOS. 291-298 (6"OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 291 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 274 & 275. TC NOS. 296-298 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE P







CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE R



NBK -	FACSIMILE	REQUEST	FORM
-------	-----------	---------	------

NBK - FACSIMILE REQU	EST FORM MINUTINENI 4
Underwriters Laboratories Inc.®	FAX NUMBERS ME (516) 271-8259 RTP (919) 549-1842 SC (408) 296-3256 CAM (360) 817-6000 TW-FUS 01-886-2-891-7644 HK 01-852-695-8196
TO: 5A NBK COMMUNICATIONS CENTER (5A Reception)	Date: 4-22-97
FAX No. (847) 272-2020 (If PROBLEMS (847) 272-8800 X PLEASE TRANSMIT TO: (Circle or Check as Appropriate)	2021)
MEL SC CAM RTP HK	TW TW OTHER
TOTAL No. PAGES 3	(100) (20)
NAME: Steven West	
ORGANIZATION: USNRC	
CITY, STATE, COUNTRY:	
FAX NO: 301 415 3577	
SUBJECT: TEGOSCO	
MESSAGE: Following are the	tast observation
which you requested	
	AP 1 WILL BE AND
regards	7 1
- Althe g	Bhanan -
SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS:	
REQUESTED BY: Johanson	EMPLOYEE NO .: 17 811
DEPARTMENT/SECTION: 4411 B	EXT.: 42075
NUMBER OF ATTEMPTS:	OPERATOR:
	An an equipment of the second

THERIOER AND, RENOTINED IF TRANSMESS OF DELAYED NO AD TRANSMOSTING TO AD TRANSMOSTING AD TRANSMOSTING AD TRANSM

2000-3A 1/96

# Record of Test Observations

File No.: R18500 Project No.: 97NK4087 Date: April 10, 1997

-

. . ....

Client: Transco Inc. Recorded By: M. Izydorek Page No. 1 of 2

	Exposed (E) or		
Test Time	Unexposed (U)	Article	
Hr:Min:Sec	Surface	No.	Observation
0:0:5:00	E	All	All of the exposed material was charred and
			black in color.
0:0:6:15	E	N	The bottom piece of material (the cap) fell form the article.
0:08:22	E	В	Flames were issuing from the sample.
0:09:40	Е	All	Flames issued from the exposed surfaces of the articles near the top of the exposed surface
0:12:56	U	All	Smoke was issuing from the entire unexposed surface with the heaviest amount from Article H
0:15:07	Е	H	A crack, running in a North-South direction had developed at the West side of the article, the crack was 1/8 in deep
0:19:21	E	B,F,C,M	Flames continued to issue from the exposed surface of the articles
0:20:03	Е	All	The surfaces were becoming beige in color
0:31:23	E	н	There were gaps present between the banding straps and the bottom surface of the protection
0.37.36	T	A 11	material.
0:41:43	F	P	The surfaces were becoming white in color.
0.53.57	L	r	the bottom surface of the protection material.
0:52:57	E	н	A Westerly view of the article shows a 1 in. separation near the West end on the bottom of the article.
1:10:26	E	J	On the South end of the article at the interface of the vertical and horizontal runs, there were two 1/4 in, wide openings in the protection material
1:29:37	E	Н	The area described at 0:15:07 had opened to a width of 2 in.
1:30:17	Е	J	The openings described at 1:10:26 had closed
1:33:28	E	G	A "flap" of protection material, 3 x 4 in., was hanging at the interface with the hanger
1:35:18	E	Q	Heavy black smoke accompanied by flames was issuing from the article at the center and at both ends where it entered the furnace chamber.
1:49:24	F	R	Flames and black smoke issued from the ten of
		10	a names and otack smoke issued from the top of

1.50.21			the sample.
1:50:51	Е	В	An area of flames issued from the bottom of the article at the interface with the support near the center of the article.
2:00:00	E	A11	No significant shares at
2.16.00		( ALL	significant changes observed.
2:10:00	E	A	West half of the article fell to the furnace
2:35:35	E	Q	The heavy black smoke ceased. Gray smoke issued from the center of the article at the bottom. The smoke was issuing from the
2:40:00	Ē	A11	Slight changes in color bad and in a crack.
2.41.03		Patt	Sught changes in color had occurred
4,41.00	E	Q	The crack described at 2:40:00 was 2 in wide
3:00:00	E & U	All	Fire test terminated.

#### L. Marsh

with the exception of test article B, a 30-inch wide steel cable tray with a 1-hour Versawrap fire barrier, it appeared that at least the innermost layer of foil (the foil attached directly to the raceway) remained intact during the hose stream test. For test article B, the foil on the bottom surface of the tray was breached, apparently by the force of the solid hose stream. GL 86-10, S 1, states, in part, that the fire endurance qualification test for fire barrier materials are successful if "[t]he cable tray, raceway, or component fire barrier system remained intact during the fire exposure and water hose stream test without developing any openings through which the cable tray, raceway, or component (e.g., cables) is visible.

On April 11, 1997, I observed Transco disassemble the fire barriers that remained on test articles H and P after the fire and hose stream tests. For both of these proposed 3-hour fire barrier designs, the inner layers of foil, water filled mylar tubes, and fiber blankets remained largely intact. Many of these mylar tubes appeared to contain their original inventory of water and those that had leaked contained some water. In addition, the ordinary adhesive-backed strapping tape that was used to attach the tubes to the raceways was largely free of fire damage.

One interesting part of the test was a test of a 12-inch by 12-inch by 8-inch thick silicone foam penetration seal that was penetrated by a 34-inch diameter steel conduit (test article N). In addition to the normal fire resistant damming board, the seal assembly included an outer layer of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth (on the fire side). According to Mr. Hawks, Transco considered this a "throw away" or research and development scoping test and did not instrument the seal assembly with thermocouples to obtain unexposed side temperatures. After the 3-hour fire exposure and hose stream test, Transco disassembled the penetrations seal. The seal assemble was intact. About 2 to 3 inches of the silicone foam material was consumed during the fire exposure. A full 5 to 6 inches of unreacted silicone foam material remained.

UL will base its determinations on the thermal performance of the test articles on its observations during the fire endurance and hose stream tests, analyses of the electronically recorded thermocouple data, and consideration of both the maximum single point temperatures and the average unexposed side temperatures. Presumably, UL will also consider the effects of the problems with the thermocouples that were experienced during the test. Attachment 4 is UL's record of test observations.

Docket Nos : 50-313, 50-282, and 50-306

Attachments: As stated

#### DISTRIBUTION (w/atts):

Central File C PUBLIC S Plant File M Docket File 3

GHolahan SWest MSalley GKalman SPLB Reading File BWetzel

Document Name: G:\SECTIONC\WEST\VWRAPTST.DOC

SC SPLB NRR SWest

0513032

OFFICIAL RECORD COPY



#### UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555-0001

May 9, 1997

MEMORANDUM TO: L.B. Marsh, Chief Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

FROM:

K. Steven West, Chief Fire Protection Engineering Section HUM Plant Systems Branch Office of Nuclear Reactor Regulation

SUBJECT: TRIP REPORT - TRIP TO UNDERWRITERS LABORATORIES, INCORPORATED TO OBSERVE THREE HOUR FIRE TEST OF ONE AND THREE HOUR VERSAWRAP RACEWAY FIRE BARRIER SYSTEMS (TAC M82809)

During April 10 and 11, 1997, I visited to Underwriters Laboratories, Incorporated (UL), Northbrook, Illinois, to observe a full-scale fire endurance test of 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems. Attachment 1 is a list of individuals that observed or participated in the test. I interacted mostly with the individuals marked with asterisks.

Transco Products, Incorporated (Transco) is developing Versawrap as a stand-alone fire barrier or as an upgrade for such existing raceway fire barriers as Thermo-Lag 330-1. In general, Versawrap barriers are installed (from the item to be protected outward) as individual layers of foil, water filled mylar tubes, fiber blankets, foil, and intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth. The numbers and arrangements of the individual barrier components are dependent on the type of item to be protected (e.g., raceway, cable, support, etc.) and the desired fire rating. (Attachment 1 to a memorandum of April 15, 1997, from K.S. West to L.E. Marsh describes the components of a typical Versawrap barrier and their general arrangements.) Entergy Operations, Incorporated, is considering installing 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barriers at Arkansas Nuclear One, Unit 1, and Northern States Power is considering installing a 1-hour Versawrap barrier at Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station.

Attachment 2 is Transco Test Procedure TR-228, "Three Hour Fire Test of One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems for Conduits and Cable Trays," Revision 2, February 7, 1997. The test was a single 3 hour fire exposure followed by a solid-stream hose stream test that was intended to demonstrate the ability of both 1- and 3-hour Versawrap fire barrier systems (in the same test) to meet the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1 (GL 86-10, S 1).

CONTACT: K.S. West, NRR 301-415-1220

#### L. Marsh

The test specimen had been constructed and installed on the test furnace before I arrived at UL. Therefore, I did not observe fire barrier installation or thermocouple placement. The overal inst specimen consisted of a steel and concrete deck from which 18 individual 1- and 3-hourest articles were suspended into UL's large floor furnace. According to Kevin Hawks, Transci (1) Transco personnel installed the Versawrap fire barriers on the test articles in accordal e with Transco instructions and procedures, (2) the test articles were instrumented in accordance with GL 86-10, S 1 (3) Transco quality control witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (4) UL quality control also independently witnessed and documented test specimen construction, (5) UL will prepare the fire test report. The test articles and the conditions which they were intended to bound are described in Attachment 2. I made pen and ink changes to Attachment 2 to reflect changes that Transco had made to the test articles articles after it issued the test procedure. Attachment 3 shows the test article layout, construction details, and thermocouple locations. The test articles, which did not contain cable fill, were instrumented with 438 thermocouples.

On the basis of my observations, it appeared that UL exposed the test specimen in accordance with the ASTM E-119 standard time-temperature curve for 3 hours. UL programmed its data acquisition computers to electronically record the test article thermocouple temperatures every two minutes. UL also printed the thermocouple temperatures about every five minutes. UL will use the electronically recorded temperature data to judge the fire endurance performance of the individual test articles. The printed temperatures were provided for contemporaneous information during the test. About midway through the fire exposure. Transco noticed some apparently anomalous thermocouple readings. For example, closely-spaced thermocouples were reporting vastly different temperatures. Upon examination, Transce "nunc' that the insulation had melted off of some thermocouple wires that were running on top of and in direct contact with the steel test deck. Apparently, at these points the thermocouples were measuring the temperature of the test deck rather than the temperatures of the test articles. After UL and Transco placed insulating blankets, etween the affected thermocouple wires and the steel test deck, the printed temperatures returned (dropped) to what appeared to be a more normal range. Transco indicated that UL would assess the impact of this event on the overall test results in its fire test report.

Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 61 minutes, it appeared that test articles A, B, C, D, L, O, and R met the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 1-hour fire rating while test articles E and C did not. Assuming that the thermocouples were working properly and on the basis of the printed temperatures at the end of about 2 hours and 55 minutes (the temperatures at 3 hours were not printed), it also appeared that test articles F, G, H, and I may meet the maximum single point temperature rise acceptance criteria of GL 86-10, S 1, for a 3-hour fire rating, but test articles J, K, M, N, and P will not.

Following the 3 hour fire exposure. UL subjected the test specimen to a solid hose stream test for 2-1/2 minutes. With the exception of test article P, most of the outer layers of intumescent-coated fiberglass cloth, foil, and fiber blankets were knocked off of the bottom and side surfaces of the test article fire barriers by the force of the hose stream. The barrier on test article P remained intact and may not have been hit by the hose stream. In addition,

#### ATTACHMENT 1

List of Observers and Participants Fire Endurance Test of Versawrap Fire Barrier Underwriters Laboratories, Inc., Northbrook, Illinois April 10, 1997

K. Steven West Robert Goss\* Kevin Hawks\* Greg Jaroz\* Sandra Bradford\* John Kmetz Jeff Deminski Gary Sharisky Ed Johanson\* Chris Jonnson Michael Allen Boomgarden Bill Joy Mark Pastor Herb Muller Mark Izydorek Sam Oolie Ron Rispoli\* Woody Walker\* Tom Lillehei Dan Langel

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Transco Products, Inc. Underwriters Laboratories, Inc. No Fire Technologies Entergy Operations, Inc. Entergy Operations, Inc. Northern States Power Sargent and Lundy

Transco Products Inc Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 1 of 13

#### Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228

<u>for</u> <u>Three Hour Fire Test of</u> <u>One and Three Hour VERSAWRAP Raceway Fire Barrier Systems</u> <u>for Conduits and Cable Trays</u>

#### (TRANSCO PRODUCTS INC. PROJECT #AR-256)

Rev.:	Description:	By	Date:	Ck:	Date:	App.:	Date:
0	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	02/07/97	K.Hawks	02/07/97	R. Goss	02/07/97
1	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	03/01/97	K.Hawks	03/01/97	B.C. Mach- chhar	03/01/97
2	For Review and Test Specimen Fabrication	G.J. Jarosz	03/16/97	Kughesh	03/17/97	(By	3/17/97

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 2 of 13

#### TABLE OF CONTENTS:

Title Page:			Page 1
Table of Contents:	********	and a second standed	Page 2
Section 1.0, Synopsis:	*******		Pages 3 - 8
Section 2.0. Test Furnace:			Page 8
Section 3.0, Items to be Protected	erreterer	*********	Page 9
Section 4.0, Fire Barrier Material Installation:		********	Page 9
Section 5.0, Thermocouples			Pages 9 - 11
Section 6.0, Fire Test:	********		Page 11
Section 7.0, Hose Stream Test	********	Sector Contractor	Pages 11 - 12
Section 8.0, Test Report:	dates a	San terring	Pages 12 - 13

#### Attachments

Drawings:	Attachment "A	4", F	Pages	13 (	of 1	13
USNRC Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1:	Attachment "F	3", F	Pages	18 0	of I	18

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 3 of 13

#### SECTION 1.0 SYNOPSIS:

Transco Fire Test #TR-228 will be a single fire test conducted in accordance with the performance requirements of NRC C<sup>\*</sup>\_36-10, Supplement 1 and the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve. The purpose of this test is to demonstrate the ability of both one and three hour *VERSAWRAP* raceway fire barrier systems (in the same test) to protect a variety of raceway conditions that are representative of those commonly found in nuclear power plants. Even though some of the barrier systems to be tested are only intended for one hour applications, they will be subjected to the full three hour fire test. In these cases, the one hour barrier specimens will be considered to be successful thermally if they meet the raceway temperature pass/fail criteria of GL 86-10 for the first hour of the fire test. After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, both one and three hour specimens will be subjected to a hose stream test in accordance with Section 7.0 of this procedure. Testing will be performed at Underwriters Laboratories (Northbrook, Illinois).

The overall test specimen will consist of a metal and concrete deck from which a number of simulated conduit and cable tray raceways will be suspended. The sizes and shapes of these raceways are intended to represent conditions that bound equivalent or less severe raceway configurations in the field. These bounding conditions to be qualified by this test are described below. The metal/concrete deck with its individual raceway specimens will be placed on top of a large floor furnace where the raceways w<sup>in</sup> be subjected to the three hour fire endurance test. Immediately after the conclusion of the fire test, the deck and raceway specimens are lifted as a single unit from the furnace and will then be exposed to the hose stream test.

The raceway items to be tested and conditions they are intended to bound are as follows:

#### **ITEM: DESCRIPTION:**

- "A" <u>2" x 2" Aluminum Solid-Back Cable Tray/Tube Track</u> This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition) as well as bundled steel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum raceways. Because this is a one hour wrap, it is only required to meet the thermal pass/fail requirements of GL 86-10 Supplement 1 for one hour whereas the hose stream test for this specimen will be performed immediately after the three hour fire test. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical raceway sections, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty cxcep, for a #8 AWG bare copper cable and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading.
- "B" <u>30" x 4" Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray</u> This item is intended to bound one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 30" x 4" (and all smaller sizes) of both aluminum and/or steel cable trays (aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "A" above) as well as bundled conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 4 of 13

"Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a single #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum raceways up to this size for hose stream test qualifications of *VERSAWRAP*. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap.

- "C" <u><sup>3</sup>/4</sub>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <sup>3</sup>/<sub>4</sub>" Lameter rigid steel conduit and will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "D" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to demonstrate one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway specimen will fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "E" <u><sup>34</sup></u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit Near Concrete Barrier</u> This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) located approximately <sup>34</sup>" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard <sup>34</sup>" diameter rigid steel conduit that will use condulets at each end of the specimen on the exposed side of the deck. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit . (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit - the impact of the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocourtles installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

64 E 27 2

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 5 of 13

three

Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hangers and ¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit - This item is intended to bound enchour VERSAWRAP systems installed on ¾" diameter conduit (as the most severe thermal mass) connected to a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped with VERSAWRAP as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

- "G" <u>2" x 2" Aluminum Solid-Back Cable Tray Tube Track</u> -This item is intended to bound three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on the smallest steel and/or aluminum cable tray (using aluminum as a worst case condition) as well as bundled sateel or aluminum conduit configurations. Since this is the smallest thermal mass expected for cable tray applications (and therefore the most severe), this tray is intended to bound all larger steel and aluminum trays. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend/corner, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. This item will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for small raceways.
- "H" <u>30" x 4" Steel Ladder-Back Cable Tray</u> This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 30" x 4" and all smaller sizes of both aluminum and steel cable tray (*aluminum trays sizes from 2" x 2" through 30" x 4" are bounded thermally by item "G" above*) and bundled steel or aluminum conduits. This specimen will demonstrate both horizontal and vertical runs of raceway, a bend, and a "Unistrut" hanger thermal short interface. This tray will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples. The empty tray is used to simulate a worst case thermal mass condition for cable loading. The use of this large steel tray is also intended to bound aluminum trays up to this size for hose stream test qualifications. This specimen will also demonstrate a "free-cable airdrop" and its connection to the raceway wrap. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for both large tray and/or box wraps.

"I" <u>Wa</u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit - This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit in he field (the most severe thermal mass). The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard *W*" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel conduit and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one of the vertical legs of specimen to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on small diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 6 of 13

- "J" <u>4" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> -This item is intended to demonstrate three hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on large diameter conduits. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 4" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a folded "S"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "S"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the horizontal leg of the raceway will be used to show the wrap installed on a large radius bend. A conduit connector will also be installed on one end of the raceway to demonstrate the wrap installed over such typical hardware items. A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on large diameter conduit raceways. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this prox. Aure. The specimen will also demonstrate a wrap-to-concrete interface to bound both one and three hour applications for large and small conduit wraps.
- "K" <u>34</u>" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit Near Concrete Barrier This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on the smallest size of conduit (the most severe thermal mass) found in the field that is located approximately 34" from a vertical or horizontal concrete barrier. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 34" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize condulets at each end of the specimen. A conduit connector will also be installed on the conduit (No hanger will be used in the test as hangers in the field would be wrapped in the same manner as the conduit the impact of the hanger thermal short in this particular case would be considered as a less severe condition as it would increase the thermal mass of the test raceway.) This conduit will be empty except for a single #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

#### , one

- "L" <u>Multiple Intersecting "Unistrut" Hangers and ¾" Diameter Rigid Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on a ¾" diameter rigid steel conduit as the smallest size of conduit found in the field (the most severe thermal mass) connected to a hanger thermal short that intersects with a second perpendicular hanger approximately 6" from the conduit. This second intersecting hanger will not be wrapped as a full length thermal short as shown in the other test specimens. The conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.
- "M" <u>1-½</u>" Diameter Steel Conduit and T64 "Thermo-Lag" Raceway Covered with Modified VERSAWRAP - This item is intended to bound "modified" one hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on 1-½" (and larger) diameter conduits in the field. The test raceway assembly will be fabricated from standard 1-½" diameter rigid steel conduit that will utilize a "U"-shape to represent both vertical and horizontal raceway runs. One corner of the "U"-shape will consist of a standard steel condulet and couplers while the opposite corner will be used to show the wrap installed on a small radius bend. The one hour Thermo-Lag material will be installed with "dry joints" (no trowel-grade Thermo-Lag will be used). A "Unistrut" hanger will be connected to the horizontal conduit section to demonstrate the impact of thermal shorts on these raceway types. This conduit will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed

"O"

aluminum unistrut trapeze-style hunger Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 7 of 13

according to Section 5.0 of this procedure.

"N" <u>12" x 12" x 16 Gauge Steel Box Attached to a ¼" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* conduit systems that interface with a on, hour "Darmatt KMH" raceway barrier system installed on the box. The conduit will pass through a penetration seal to show wrap terminations as such. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1.

- "O" <u>Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a ¼" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according to Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simulated junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.
- "P" <u>Two 6" x 6" x 6" x 16 Gauge Steel Boxes Attached to a ¼" Diameter Steel Conduit</u> This item is intended to bound three hour VERSAWRAP systems installed on both "free-air" junction boxes and junction boxes mounted to concrete barriers as well as intersecting conduit connections. The conduit and box will be empty except for a #8 AWG bare copper wire and thermocouples installed according Section 5.0 of this procedure and Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. The sizes of both simula junction boxes were chosen to represent worst case small thermal masses whereas field junction boxes with large surfaces would be bounded by the 30" x 4" cable tray raceway included in this test.

<u>3C-500MCM Aluminum Armored Cable</u> - This item is intended to bound one hour *VERSAWRAP* systems installed on a 3C-500MCM aluminum armored cable as supplied by Northern States Power for their Prairie Island Nuclear Power Station. The 10' (minimum) span of cable will be temporarily supported by a rope about mid-span. During the test, the rope will burnelt and will allow the wrapped cable to be unsupported for the remainder of the fire test. The intent here is to show that the wrap will still be effective even if the cable suddenly becomes unsupported between hanger points (maximum distance as tested herein) in the field. (In the field, the cable is located in an aluminum tray suspended on steel hangers. The utility wishes to evaluate the possibility of wrapping only the cable instead of the entire tray. It is felt that if the aluminum tray is not wrapped, it will melt or be consumed during a fire thus leaving the cable unsupported except at points where the tray was suspended on steel hangers.)

"R" 3" × 3" angle - structural steel

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 8 of 13

#### SECTION 2.0 TEST FURNACE:

The furnace to be used is Underwriters Laboratories' standard large floor furnace. The furnace shall be operated in accordance with the requirements of ASTM E-119 for the three hour fire test

#### SECTION 3.0 ITEMS TO BE PROTECTED:

The following is a description of the items to be used as raceway elements for the fire test:

(See Section 1.0, Synopsis for a general description of these items. Note: all steel trays and boxes will be manufactured from 16 gauge steel while all conduit will be standard, rigid conduit. All "free-cable air drops" will consist of single pieces of stranded 8 AWG bare copper wire according to GL 86-10, Supplement requirements. All hangers will be fabricated from standard "Unistrut" type material [hangers may be welded to the raceways for the test in lieu of using clips, straps, etc].)

An accurate description of specimen fabrication shall be included in the final test report (as verified by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control). Hardware substitutions are permitted provided substitute material (etc.) does not increase the heat mass of the specimen and are documented by Transco QC and UL.

#### SECTION 4.0 FIRE BARRIER MATERIAL INSTALLATION:

The VERSAWRAP and Transco Products Inc. TCO-001 materials shall be installed by Transco Products Inc. personnel in accordance with the manufacturer's instruction and/or procedures. If written instructions are not available at the time of installation, then Transco Products Inc. QC personnel shall document/verify step-by-step methods used for installation. Test installation records will be included as an appendix to the final test report.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 9 of 13

Materials used for this test shall be purchased, received, and installed in accordance with latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Program and applicable procedures. All fire barrier envelope installation will be witnessed by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control personnel. Material components (except for tie wire and ceramic blanket) will be identified with the responsible QC's initials as each layer is installed.

<u>Note</u>: This test will be performed as a "Safety Related" quality program in accordance with the latest approved revision of Transco Products Inc.'s Quality Assurance Manual (10CFR, Part 21 applies) with the exception that all materials will be provided as "Q-Class" with Certificates of Conformances.

#### SECTION 5.0 THERMOCOUPLES:

#### A.) Fire Barrier Envelope:

The fire barrier envelope is considered all areas of the specimen on the exposed side of the test slab. For these areas, thermocouples shall be mounted to the specimen to gather temperature data for the duration of the fire test. At a minimum, temperatures shall be documented at nominal two minute intervals for the duration of the test. Thermocouple placement for the fire barrier envelope (quantity and locations) shall be as specified in NRC GL 86-10 and Supplement 1 as follows:

".... Cable Trays - The temperature rise on the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a cable tray shall be measured by placing the thermocouples every 152 mm (6 - inches) on the exterior surface of each tray side rails between the cable tray side rail and the fire barrier material.

Internal raceway temperatures shall be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare copper conductor routed on the top of the cable tray rungs along the entire length and down the longitudinal center of the cable tray run with thermocouples installed every 152 mm (6- inches) along the length of the copper conductor. Thermocouples shall be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations. ..."(1)

"....Conduits - The temperature rise of the unexposed surface of a fire barrier system installed on a conduit should be measured by placing thermocouples every 152 mm [6 inches] on the exterior conduit surface between the conduit and the unexposed surface of the fire barrier material. These thermocouples should be attached to the exterior conduit surface opposite of the test deck and closest to the furnace fire source. The internal raceway temperatures should be measured by a stranded AWG 8 bare copper

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 10 of 13

conductor routed through the entire length of the conduit system with thermocouples installed every 152 mm [6 inches] along the length of the copper conductor. Thermocouples should also be placed immediately adjacent to all structural members, supports, and barrier penetrations...."(1)

Free-Cable Air Drops: Thermocouples will be installed on the stranded 8 AWG wire used for demonstrating the "free-cable air drop" every 152 mm [6 inches] in accordance with the same requirements for monitoring internal conduit/cable tray temperatures.

(Not\* In accordance with NRC GL 86-10, Supplement 1 requirements, "for the thermocouples installed on conduits, cable tray side rails, and bare copper conductors,  $a \pm 13 \text{ mm} (\pm 1/2 \text{ inch})$  installation tolerance is acceptable". Hence, this tolerance shall be considered acceptable for use in this test. The tolerance is considered to be from the point of individual thermocouple placement and not compounded from one thermocouple to the next (i.e., all thermocouples can not be 6 1/2" from each other but rather must be  $\pm 1/2$ " from the measured 6" [minimum] mark on the item being monitored.)

Junction box thermocouples will be installed in accordance with the requirements of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1.

#### B.) Penetration Seal:

Thermocouple placement for the unexposed penetration seal surface (test item "N") will comply with the typical requirements of ASTM E814. As an optional method for protecting thermocouple tips, the thermojunctions of each thermocouple may be embedded into the seal surface or seal surface/penetrating member interface approximately  $\frac{1}{16} - \frac{1}{16}$ " below the seal surface (because of the nature of the seal material, this placement can be performed at any time after the installation of the seal material). For this alternate method, insulation pads for covering the thermocouple tips will not be used.

All specimen temperatures shall be monitored using thermocouples (with special limits of error equal or less than 1.1°C). Thermojunctions of all specimen thermocouples shall be electrically welded. All thermocouple wire shall be supplied with certifications of purity, accuracy, and calibration.

Furnace atmosphere thermocouples shall be placed 12" below the furnace deck/slab as well as 12" away from representative elements of the test specimen accordance with ASTM E-119-88 requirements (not less than nine [9] thermocouples will be used to monitor furnace atmosphere temperatures). Additional furnace atmosphere thermocouples be employed around the specimen as it protrudes into the furnace. These will be placed at the laboratories discretion to supplement data acquisition in areas where furnace atmosphere thermocouples can not be mounted to satisfy ASTM E-119 requirements because of the specimen's configuration, et cetera.

The installation and location of each uniquely identified thermocouple (for both the specimen and furnace) shall

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 11 of 13

be mapped and verified (measured) by Transco Products Inc. Quality Control. Verification may be performed as hand written notes and shall become part of the permanent records of the test. Also, all thermocouple certifications shall also become a permanent record of the test.

<sup>1</sup> Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

#### SECTION 6.0 FIRE TEST:

The fire test shall be conducted in accordance with the ASTM E-119 time/temperature curve (and temperature tolerance) for a minimum of three (3) hours. As a minimum, temperature data provided by both furnace and specimen thermocouples should be monitored and documented at nominal two (2) minute intervals. The laboratory shall verify and document visual specimen performance and occurrences (*i.e.*, smoke, et cetera) for the duration of the test.

It is intent of the test to demonstrate as many different raceway configurations as possible. As such, several raceway test specimens exhibit multiple features (*i.e.*, the 3 hour large tray demonstrates the tray wrap, a "free-air" cable and interface, a wrap-to-concrete interface, *etc.*). If one of these features fails thermally or during the hose stream test, it is the intent of the test to then exclude that feature from the configuration being qualified. In the case of the large tray for example, if the "free-air" cable or wrap-to-concrete interface fails for any reason, it is does not cause the tray to fail provided the rest of the tray specimen meets the acceptance criteria of Generic Letter 86-10, Supplement 1. Any failed portion of a specimen wilk then not be qualified by this test.

#### SECTION 7.0 HOSE STREAM TEST:

After the conclusion of the three hour fire test, the fire barrier envelope specimen (along with the surrounding penetration seal) shall be subjected to a minimum of one of the following hose stream tests (as identified in NRC GL 80-10, Supplement 1):

(a.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 3.8 cm (1-1/2-inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 30 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75 psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at a maximum of 1.5 meters (5 feet) from the test specimen. (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 minutes for both 1-hour and 3 -hour barriers); or<sup>2</sup>

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 12 of 13

- (b.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through a 6.4 cm (2 ½-inch) national standard playpipe with a 2.9 cm (1-1/8 -inch) orifice at a pressure of 207 kPa (30psi) at a distance of 6.1 meters (20 feet) from the specimen, (Duration of the hose stream application 1 minute for a 1-hour barrier and 2 ½ minutes for a 3-hour barrier); or"<sup>2</sup>
- (c.) "The stream applied at random to all exposed surfaces of the test specimen through 3.8 cm (1 ½inch) fog nozzle set at a discharge angle of 15 degrees with a nozzle pressure of 517 kPa (75psi) and a minimum discharge of 284 1pm (75gpm) with the tip of the nozzle at a maximum of 3 meters (10 feet) from the test specimen. (Duration of the hose stream application - 5 misutes for both 1-hour and 3-hour barriers)."<sup>2</sup>

2: Generic Letter 86-10 and Supplement 1

The responsible QC shall verify and document the type of hose stream, distance, time et cetera employed in each hose stream test.

#### SECTION 8.0 TEST REPORT:

The laboratory performing the test shall provide a written report which accurately describes the following minimum elements of the test:

- 1.) Verification of specimen materials and dimensions used;
- Verification of fire barrier envelope materials, dimensions, and installation techniques (procedures) used;
- 3.) Verification of general furnace construction/dimensions and locations of burner, thermocouples, et cetera;
- Verification of specimen thermocouple locations (along with copies of thermocouple material certifications);
- 5.) Verification of standards used for conducting fire test along with record of both furnace atmosphere and specimen temperature data acquired during test;
- Record of furnace pressure during fire test;
- 7.) Record of visual occurrences/observations of fire and hose stream tests;

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Page: 13 of 13

- 8.) Record of hose stream test(s);
- 9.) Photographic records of specimen before fire barrier envelope installation, after fire barrier installation, and post fire/hose stream tests;
- 10.) Post test observations including measurements of material loss/degradation, et cetera;
- 11.) Certification of the report by the agency performing test; and,
- 12.) GC records and notes from installation and test as an appendix to the report.
- 13.) Record of test items thermocouple temperature readings.

#### ALL TEST RECORDS, NOTES, CERTIFICATIONS, REQUIRED BY THIS TEST WILL BE LEGIBLE AND SUITABLE FOR REPRODUCTION.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 1 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 2 of 13



PLAN VIEW

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 3 of 13



### ELEVATION OF A & G

## ITEM A DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 4 of 13



## ELEVATION OF B & H ITEM B DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 5 of 13



Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 6 of 13



ELEVATION OF D & J ITEM D DOES NOT INTERFACE W/CONCRETE STANDARD 4"¢ RIGID STEEL CONDUIT

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 7 of 13



ELEVATION OF E & K
Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 8 of 13



ELEVATION OF F & L

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 9 of 13



ELEVATION OF M

I CAPDARITIAN AT THE TO INCAS ADDITES.

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 10 of 13



12" X 12" X 12" CONDUIT MOUNTED DARMATT J-BOX

ELEVATION OF N

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 11 of 13



1 HOUR INSTALLATION

Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 12 of 13



# ELEVATION OF P 3 HOUR INSTALLATION



ELEVATION OF Q

3C-500MCM ALUMINUM ARMORED CABLE FURNISHED BY NORTHERN STATES POWER TO BOUND PRAIRIE ISLAND SITE SPECIFIC INSTALLATION Transco Products Inc. Test Procedure #TR-228 Revision: 2 Date: February 7, 1997 Attachment A Page 13 of 13



NORTH



ARTICLE	TC NOS.	ARTICLE	TC NOS
ABCOS	194-234 128-160 & 411-413 39-67 350-376 96-111	JKLN	324-349 & 426 112-127 377-384 & 427 58-95 407-410 & 417-420
F Q H	1-8 & 428 235-273 161-193 & 414-416	O e O e	299-323 274-298 429-438 386-406

TEST ARTICLE LAYOUT & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS



TC NOS. 222-234 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER

WEST END

CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO. 222 COINCIDES WITH TO NOS. 194 AND 208 ON TUBE TRACK.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -

ARTICLE A

SOUTH SIDE

NORTH SIDE

2"x2" ALUMINUM



THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS - ARTICLE B

-----



# CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE D

TC NOS. 364-376 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350.











SOUTH SIDE

EAST END

NORTH SIDE

TC NOS. 261-273 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN ALUMINUM TUBE TRACK. TC NO. 261 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 235 AND 248 ON TUBE TRACK.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE G



CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE H







TC NOS. 338-349 & 426 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WIT IN CONDUIT. TC NO. 364 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 350. TC NO. 426 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 337.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS-ARTICLE J





CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE L



- EAST

TO NOS. 82-95 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TO NO. 82 COINCIDES WITH TO NO. 68.

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE M



TC NOS. 417-420 (6" OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT. TC NO. 417 COINCIDES WITH TC NO. 407.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE N



NORTH SIDE

# WEST SIDE

# SOUTH SIDE

### EAST SIDE

TC NOS. 316-323 (6"OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 316 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 299 & 300. TC NOS. 321-323 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE O



NORTH SIDE

WEST SIDE

SOUTH SIDE

EAST SIDE

TC NOS. 291-298 (6"OC) ON NO. 8 AWG BARE COPPER CONDUCTOR WITHIN CONDUIT AND JUNCTION BOX. TC NO. 291 COINCIDES WITH TC NOS. 274 & 275. TC NOS. 296-298 ON COPPER CONDUCTOR COILED WITHIN THE LOWER STEEL JUNCTION BOX.

> CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE P



- 4 "x4 "x1/4" VERTICA STEEL ANGLE

CONSTRUCTION DETAILS & THERMOCOUPLE LOCATIONS -ARTICLE R



NBK - FACSIMILE	REQUEST	FORM
-----------------	---------	------

MINUMMENI +

Underwriters Laboratories Inc.®					FAX NUMBERS   ME (516) 271-3259   RTP (919) 549-1842   SC (408) 296-3256   CAM (360) 817-6000   TW-FUS 01-886-2-717-2405   TW-ES 01-886-2-891-7644   HK 01-852-895-8196		
TO: 🚺 5A NBK	COMMUNIC (5A Recept	CATIONS CEI	NTER		Date: _	4-22-97	
FAX No. (847) 272-2 PLEASE TRANSMIT	2020 (If PROE TO: (Circle o	BLEMS (847) r Check as Aj	272–8800 X ppropriate)	2021)			
MEL SC	CAM	RTP	нк	TW	TW	OTHER	
TOTAL No. PAGES	3			(FUS)	(ES)		
NAME: Steve	en u	lest					
ORGANIZATION:	SNR	C		and an			
CITY, STATE, COUNT	RY:						
FAX NO .: 301	415	357	7				
SUBJECT: Tra	1500						
MESSAGE: F	ollowing	v are puest-cof	the	1-00	÷ - c	6.servation	
Ragad	s Sola	<del>ul C</del>	26	Zella	, 22,22	2	
SPECIAL INSTRUCT	IONS:						
REQUESTED BY:	Johar	son		EMPLO	YEE NO	17811	
DEPARTMENT/SECT	ION: 441	B		EXT.:	420	-25	
NUMBER OF ATTEM	PTS:			OPERA	ATOR:		

2000-3A 196 TISÉNGÉR AND, SE NOTIFIED IR TRANSMESS ON DELLASS NORE THAN, TWO HOLPS'''

# Record of Test Observations

File No.: R18500 Project No.: 97NK4087 Date: April 10, 1997

Client: Transco Inc. Recorded By: M. Izydorek Page No. 1 of 2

Test Time	Exposed (E) or Unexposed (U)	Article	
Hr:Min:Sec	Surface	No.	Observation
0:0:5:00	E	All	All of the exposed material was charred and black in color.
0:0:6:15	Е	N	The bottom piece of material (the cap) fell form the article.
0:08:22	E	В	Flames were issuing from the sample
0:09:40	Е	All	Flames issued from the exposed surfaces of the articles near the top of the exposed surface.
0:12:56	U	All	Smoke was issuing from the entire unexposed surface with the heaviest amount from Article H.
0:15:07	Е	H	A crack, running in a North-South direction had developed at the West side of the article, the crack was 1/8 in, deep.
0:19:21	E	B,F,C,M	Flames continued to issue from the exposed surface of the articles.
0:20:03	Е	All	The surfaces were becoming beige in color.
0:31:23	E	H	There were gaps present between the banding $s_{i_1, i_2, j_3}$ and the bottom surface of the protection material.
0:37:36	E	All	The surfaces were becoming white in color.
0:41:43	E	Р	There was a slight separation in the material on the bottom surface of the protection material.
0:52:57	E	Н	A Westerly view of the article shows a 1 in. separation near the West end on the bottom of the article.
1:10:26	Е	J	On the South end of the article at the interface of the vertical and horizontal runs, there were two $1/4$ in, wide openings in the protection material
1:29:37	Е	Н	The area described at 0:15:07 had opened to a width of 2 in.
1:30:17	Е	J	The openings described at 1:10:26 had closed.
1:33:28	E	G	A "flap" of protection material, 3 x 4 in., was hauging at the interface with the hanger.
1:35:18	E	Q	Heavy black smoke accompanied by flames was issuing from the article at the center and at both ends where it entered the furnace chamber.
1:49:24	E	В	Flames and black smoke issued from the top of
			a second and a second and a solution of M

1:50:31	Е	В	the sample. An area of flames issued from the bottom of the article at the interface with the support near the center of the article
2:00:00	Е	All	No significant changes observed
2:16:00	Е	A	the West half of the article fell to the furnace floor.
2:35:35	E	Q	The heavy black smoke ceased. Gray smoke issued from the center of the article at the bottom. The smoke was invited from the
2:40:00	Е	All	Slight changes in color had accurred
2:41:03	E	0	The crack described at 2:40:00 upps 2 in white
3:00:00	E & U	All	Fire test terminated.